=

[
)
ji=

Public Document Pack

Merseyside

FIRE & RESCUE

SERVICE

To: All Members of the Audit Committee
(and any other Members who may wish to attend)

R. Groves
Monitoring Officer

Tel: 0151 296 4000
Extn: 4230 Shauna Healey

Your ref: Our ref SH/RG Date: 02 February 22

Dear Sir/Madam,

You are invited to attend a meeting of the AUDIT COMMITTEE to be held at 1.00 pm
on THURSDAY, 10TH FEBRUARY, 2022 in the Liverpool Suite - Fire Service

Headquarters.

There are 10 socially distanced available for the public to attend the meeting. These
seats are available on a first come first serve basis, so please contact
DemocraticServices@merseyfire.gov.uk with your details if you require one.

The meeting will be available to watch via YouTube on the following link:
https://youtu.be/HK2ttU3dRYY

Yours faithfully,

PP — S. Healey

Monitoring Officer

Encl.

Merseyside Fire & Rescue Service Headquarters, Bridle Road, Bootle, Merseyside L30 4YD Fax: 0151 296 4144
Legal Services 0151 296 4122, Democratic Services: 0151 296 4112


https://youtu.be/HK2ttU3dRYY

This page is intentionally blank



MERSEYSIDE FIRE AND RESCUE AUTHORITY

AUDIT COMMITTEE

10 FEBRUARY 2022

AGENDA

Members

Clir Linda Maloney (Chair)

Clir Edna Finneran

Clir Janet Grace

Clir Andrew Makinson

CliIr Lisa Preston

Anthony Boyle, Independent Person

1. Preliminary Matters

The Authority is requested to consider the identification of:

a) declarations of interest by individual Members in relation to
any item of business on the Agenda

b) any additional items of business which the Chair has
determined should be considered as matters of urgency; and

c) items of business which may require the exclusion of the

press and public during consideration thereof because of the
possibility of the disclosure of exempt information.

2. Minutes from Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 8)

The Minutes of the previous meeting, held on 28" September 2021, are
submitted for approval as a correct record and for signature by the Chair.

3. Grant Thornton Auditors Annual Report 2021 (Pages 9 - 32)

To consider the attached report from the Authority’s External Auditors —
Grant Thornton, concerning the Annual Report 2021.

4, MRFA Audit Committee Progress report - January 2022 (Pages 33 -
50)

To consider the attached report from the Authority’s External Auditors —
Grant Thornton, concerning the Progress Report - January 2022.




Financial Review 2021/22 - October to December (Pages 51 - 78)

To consider Report CFO/002/22 of the Director of Finance & Procurement,
concerning the financial position, (revenue, capital, reserves, and treasury
management activities), for the Authority for 2021/22.




Agenda Item 2

MERSEYSIDE FIRE AND RESCUE AUTHORITY

28™ SEPTEMBER 2021

MINUTES

Present: Clirs Linda Maloney (Chair), Edna Finneran, Jan Grace &
Andrew Makinson

Also Present: CFO Phil Garrigan, Ria Groves, lan Cummins

Apologies of absence were received from: Clir Preston &
Anthony Boyle

PRELIMINARY MATTERS

Members considered the identification of any declarations of interest, matters of
urgency or items that would require the exclusion of the press and public due to the
disclosure of exempt information.

RESOLVED that:

A) no declarations of interest were made by individual Members in relation
to any item of business on the Agenda

B) no additional items of business were determined by the Chair to be
considered as matters of urgency; and

C) no items of business required the exclusion of the press and public
during consideration thereof because of the possibility of the disclosure
of exempt information.

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

The Minutes of the previous meeting, held on 3rd June 2021 were approved as a
correct record and for signature by the Chair.

AUDIT FINDINGS 2020/21 — GRANT THORNTON

Georgia Jones, representing the Authority’s External Auditor — Grant Thornton (GT),
provided Members with an overview of their Audit Finding Report for 2020-21.

Members were advised that the work for the Audit Findings 2020-21 had been
substantially complete at this point, but GT are just finishing work on the valuation of
land and buildings, the pension liability and they are waiting for assurance from the
Auditor of Merseyside Pension Fund (MPF) as without it GT’s financial statements
can’t be signed off. MPF will supply their declaration in the next week or 2 and if
there are any changes, GT will bring it to Members’ attention at the earliest
opportunity.

Page 5



Key risks were then identified to Members, along with key judgements and
estimates. Members were informed of the communication and responsibilities GT
have and lastly identified their conclusion and fee.

Members were asked if they had any question or comments about the report and
they did not.

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2020/21 — APPROVAL OF AUDITED
STATEMENTS

Members considered Report CFO/055/21 of the Director of Finance and
Procurement, that presented the 2020/21 Statement of Accounts for approval by
Members’ and request that they be authorised for issue.

Members were advised that Accounts and Audit regulations require the Authority’s
approval for the audited Statement of Accounts before the 30 September 2021, but it
can only do this once Grant Thornton (GT) have completed their work.

Unfortunately, Grant Thornton informed the Director of Finance & Procurement that
they will not complete their audit work by the 30th September as they are waiting on
some assurances from the Merseyside Pension Fund auditor, before they can issue
their audit opinion. Grant Thornton have indicated that subject to the MPF
assurances, they will issue an unqualified opinion on the Statement of Accounts,
which is basically confirming that the Statement represents a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Authority and its income and expenditure for 2020/21, and
that the Statement has been prepared in accordance with the required Code and
regulations. Therefore, Members were asked to consider the statement of accounts
and delegate authority to the Chair of the Audit Committee and the Director of
Finance & Procurement, as the s151 officer, to sign-off the 2020/21 Statement of
Accounts for publication, once Grant Thornton have completed their audit work.

Members were given a brief overview of the report including the four core financial
statements: the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement, the Movement in
Reserves Statement (MiRS), the Balance Sheet and the Cash Flow Statement; and
any significant changes to the previous year’s figures.

The Code and regulations require a number of notional accounting entries and
adjustments that are significant in value are to be included in the Statement of
Accounts, such as a depreciation charge. As these charges are notional in nature
they do not form part of the costs that must be funded by the Authority’s approved
(general fund) budget.

Members were advised that the 2020/21 neutral revenue outturn position, reported to
Members’ of the Policy & Resources Committee at their meeting on 29th July 2021,
has not changed as a result of any financial information in the statements being
considered today.

RESOLVED that:
A) the unaudited Statement of Accounts 2020/21 (attached as Appendix A to this

report) to be authorised for issue and delegate authority to the Chair of the
Audit Committee and the Director of Finance & Procurement, as the s151

Page 6



officer, to sign-off the 2020/21 Statement of Accounts for publication, once GT
have completed their audit work, be approved and;

B) the letter of representation in relation to the 2020/21 accounts (attached as
Appendix B), be approved. Once Grant Thornton have completed the audit,
the Chair and Director of Finance & Procurement will sign the letter.

FINANCIAL REVIEW 2021/22 — APRIL TO JUNE

Members considered Report CFO/050/21 of the Director of Finance and
Procurement, concerning the revenue, capital, and reserves financial position for the
Authority for 2021/22.

Members were given a brief overview of the report highlighting the revenue position
andbudget movements in the first quarter. All the adjustments are self-balancing
and do not impact on the approved net budget requirement, that remains at
£59.250m.

The report considered the robustness of the approved key budget assumptions
which are:

A 2020/21 pay freeze assumption. As the Firefighters and non-uniform staff have
been offered 1.5% and 1.75% pay award, the Authority is faced with a a £0.612m
financial challenge in 2021/22, rising to £0.750m in future years. .

The administration costs associated with implementing the Home Office immediate
detriment offer to the firefighters with regard to the age discrimination remedy for the
McCloud case are expected to cost £0.080m in 2021/22 and may rise to potentially
£350k by 2023/24.

The report has identified a £0.692m revenue overspend in 2021/22.

Members were recommended to draw down £0.692m from reserves to cover the
financial challenge in 2021/22. The ongoing financial challenge will be picked up
during the 2022/23 budget process (£0.750m to cover 2021/22 pay awards).

The Capital Position shows the amendments to the approved capital programme of
+£3.856m and this increase relates to:

the approved re-phasing of £3.702m of 2020/21 schemes into 2021/22;

the approved works on the existing TDA site of £0.150m, funded from reserves; and
additional ICT works of £0.004m funded from the revenue budget.

Members were informed that apart from the adjustments to reflect the approved use
of reserves, the report is seeking members approval to use £0.692m of reserves to

cover the revenue financial challenge.

The performance of Treasury management was consistent with the approved
treasury management strategy for 2021/22. At the end of June 2021 the Authority
held £29.5m of investments. All investments are consistent with the approved
investment strategy and within the limits.

Members were advised that no new loans have been taken out.

Page 7



Members commented that reserves are there for meeting projects spread over more
than one year, specific risks, or as a contingency against unplanned events.

RESOLVED that:
A) the contents of the report, be noted,;
B) the proposed revenue and capital budget alignments, be approved;
C) the reserve adjustments in the quarter and the proposed use of
reserves outlined in the report to fund:-
i) the cost of the 2021/22 pay awards, and
i) additional pension administration costs,

be approved, and;

D) the Director of Finance and Procurement be instructed to continue to
work with budget managers to maximise savings in 2021/22.

Close

Date of next meeting: 2" June 2022

Signed: Dated:

Page 8



° Grant Thornton

Auditor’s Annual Report

Merseyside Fire & Rescue Authority g

-
jab)
Q
(¢
©

For the year ending 2020-21
December 2021

A



0T 9bed

Commercial in confidence

Contents

Section Page
Executive Summary 3

@ Commentary on arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectivenessiin its use of
resources 4
We are required under Financial sustainability 5
Section 20(1)(c]) of the Local Governance 8

Audit and Accountability Act
2014 to satisfy ourselves that Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness 14
the Authority has made
proper arrangements for
securing economy, Opinion of the financial statements 17
efficiency and effectiveness
in its use of resources. The
Code of Audit Practice
issued by the National Audit
Office (NAQ) requires us to _ A - The responsibilities of the Fire and Rescue Service 19
report to you our

Covid-19 arrangements 16

Appendices

: B - Risks of significant weaknesses - our procedures and findings 20
commentary relating to
proper arrangements. ) C - An explanatory note on recommendations 21
We report if significant X Vi | D - Use of formal auditor’s powers 22

matters have come to our
attention. We are not
required to consider, nor
have we considered,
whether all aspects of the
Authority’s arrangements for
securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness
in its use of resources are
operating effectively.

The contents of this report relate only to the matters which have come to our attention, which we believe need to be
reported to you. It is not a comprehensive record of all the relevant matters, which may be subject to change, and
in particular we cannot be held responsible to you for reporting all of the risks which may affect the Service or all
weaknesses in your internal controls. This report has been prepared solely for your benefit and should not be
quoted in whole or in part without our prior written consent. We do not accept any responsibility for any loss
occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this report, as this
report was not prepared for, nor intended for, any other purpose.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report | 30 November 2021 2



TT obed

Executive summary

g\ Value for money arrangements and key
=/ recommendation(s)

Under the National Audit Office (NAO) Code of Audit Practice (‘the Code'), we are required to
consider whether the Authority has put in place proper arrangements to secure economy,
efficiency and effectivenessin its use of resources. The auditor is no longer required to give a
binary qualified / unqualified VFM conclusion. Instead, auditors report in more detail on the
overall arrangements, as well as key recommendations on any significant weaknesses in the
Authority’s arrangements identified during the audit.

Auditors are required to report their commentary on the Authority’s arrangements under
specified criteria. As part of our work, we considered whether there were any risks of
significant weakness in the Authority’s arrangements for securing economyj, efficiency and
effectivenessin its use of resources. Our findings are summarised in the table below.

No significant weaknesses in
arrangements identified

Financial
sustainability

No risks of significant
weakness identified

No risks of significant
weakness identified

No significant weaknessesin
arrangements identified, but three
improvement recommendations
have been made

Governance

No risks of significant
weakness identified

No significant weaknessesin
arrangements identified

Improving economy,
efficiency and
effectiveness

No significant weaknesses in arrangements identified.

No significant weaknesses in arrangements identified, but improvement
recommendations made.

Significant weakness in arrangements identified and key
recommendation made.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

® @

©)

Commercial in confidence

Financial sustainability

We did not identify any risks of significant weaknesses in the Authority’s
financial sustainability arrangements in our initial risk assessment. Our further
work confirmed this view, with no significant weaknesses in arrangements
identified. Our findings are set out in further detail on pages 5 to 7.

Governance

We did not identify any risks of significant weaknesses in the Authority’s
governance arrangements in our initial risk assessment. Our further work
confirmed this view, with no significant weaknesses in arrangements identified.
We have made three improvement recommendations. Our findings are set out
in further detail on pages 8 to 13.

Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness

We did not identify any risks of significant weaknesses in the Authority’s
arrangements for improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness in our initial
risk assessment. Our further work confirmed this view, with no significant
weaknesses in arrangements identified.. Our findings are set out in further
detail on pages 14+ to 15.

Opinion on the financial statements

We have completed our audit of your financial statements and issued an
unqualified audit opinion on 22 October 2021, following the Audit Committee
meeting on 28 September 2021. Our findings are set out in further detail on
page 17.

Auditor’s Annual Report | 30 November 2021 3



2T obed

Commercial in confidence

Commentary on the Authority’s
arrangements to secure economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources

All fire authorities are responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness
from their resources. This includes taking properly informed decisions and managing key operational and financial risks so that
they can deliver their objectives and safeguard public money. The Authority’s responsibilities are set out in Appendix A.

Fire authorities report on their arrangements, and the effectiveness of these arrangements as part of their annual governance statement.

Under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, we are required to be satisfied whether the Authority has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectivenessin its use
of resources.

The National Audit Office’s Auditor Guidance Note (AGN) 03, requires us to assess arrangements under three areas:

ok

Financial sustainability Governance Improving economy, efficiency
and effectiveness

Arrangements for ensuring the Arrangements for ensuring that
Authority can continue to deliver the Authority makes appropriate Arrangements for improving the
services. This includes planning decisions in the right way. This way the Authority delivers its
resources to ensure adequate includes arrangements for budget services. This includes
finances and maintain setting and management, risk arrangements for understanding
sustainable levels of spending management, and ensuring the costs and delivering efficiencies
over the medium term (3-6 years). Authority makes decisions based and improving outcomes for

on appropriate information. service users.

on pages 6 to 19. Further detail on how we approached our work is included in Appendix B.

. Our commentary on each of these three areas, as well as the impact of Covid-19, is set out

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report | 30 November 2021 4



¢T obed

Commercial in confidence

Financial sustainability

We considered how the Authority:

identifies all the significant financial pressuresiit is
facing and builds these into its plans

plans to bridge its funding gaps and identify
achievable savings

plans its finances to support the sustainable
delivery of servicesin accordance with strategic
and statutory priorities

ensures its financial plan is consistent with other
plans such as workforce, capital, investment and
other operational planning

identifies and manages risk to financial resilience,
such as unplanned changes in demand and
assumptions underlying its plans.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Overview of the Arrangements to ensure financial sustainability

Merseyside Fire & Authority has a good history of delivering a balanced budget without using reserves and in 20/21 they
achieved an underspend of £1.42m, which was in part linked to Covid-1? and the impact on planned delivery but also as a
result of savings achieved. The Authority’s approach to financial planning demonstrates a clear understanding of the
costs of delivering the statutory services, whilst incorporating reserves into the financial plans to meet the costs of future
projects and initiatives.

The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFP) is embedded within the annual budget setting cycle to provide a longer term
view of priorities and demand for services. Council Tax assumptions are a key element of planning and the Authority works
closely with their Billing Authorities to understand assumptions around the Council Tax base and also the likely surplus or
deficit on the Collection Funds. The Comprehensive Spending Review and Government Settlements are reviewed on an
ongoing basis to try and model future resource envelopes that Merseyside will operate in. As for all fire authorities, annual
settlements and the lack of longer term assurances over funding make financial planning more shorttermin its focus.
Indications from central Governmentare that the future may bring a longer term funding settlement, which would help
bring further clarity around these planning assumptions.

The current capital programme reflects the priorities of the Authority and includes annual replacement schemes of
vehicles, equipment and ICT over the next 4 years as well as significant spend on either station modernisation or buildings
such as the new Training Development Academy (TDA) and mergers of the Aintree and Croxteth fire stations to create a
super fire station. Capital spend is primarily funded from capital reserves or revenue contributions to capital, with some
borrowing. The Authority sets and reviews a number of prudential indicators showing the proposed capital expenditure
plans, how they are to be funded, the impact on the organisation’s finances and their affordability in terms of the impact
on revenue budgets.

In addition to the capital programme, the authority incorporates workforce planning into its forecasts. The workforce
planning group considers forecast staffing needs, in particular firefighters. Between 2011/12 and 2019/20 the plan was to
reduce firefighter numbers via natural retirements from 1000 to around 600. Given the age profile of its firefighters, the
Authority knew it would lose a significant proportion of the establishment by the early 2020s due to them reaching
retirement age. The recruitment reserve has been established to recruit firefighters in advance of the current establishment
retirement to ensure it maintains a competent workforce. Retirement numbers are monitored regularly and the number of
recruits and recruit programmes are determined to maintain the required operational staffing levels. Finance also
proactively liaise with HR where there are vacancies to ensure any short-term or longer-term savings and opportunities are
identified.

Auditor’s Annual Report | 30 November 2021



T abed

Commercial in confidence

Financial sustainability

Key Financial assumptions
The main financial assumptionsin the MTFP relate to funding and pay increases and in our view, they are reasonable and in line with expectations.

The Local Government Financial Settlement for 2020-21 confirmed funding as £31.3m, an increase of 1.6% on the previous year, and set the Council Tax increase referendum limit at 2%. With a
Council Tax increase of 1.99%, the Authority set a balanced budget. As a result of the impact of Covid-19 and savings, the Authority achieved an underspend of £1.42m for 20/21.

Staff costs accounted for over 70% of the 2020-21 expenditure budget and represent the largest element of expenditure. The 2020/21 budget and MTFP for 2020-25 forecasted a 2.5% pay increase
for each of the next five years, this was subsequently revised to 0% for 2021/22 only following the government’s announcement of a Public Sector Pay freeze for the year. In 2020-21, there was an
increase of 2% in July for firefighters and 2.75% increase in April for local government service staff. The staff costs assumptions build on the outputs of the workforce planning group and includes
additional funding for staff to go through training to recruit and maintain adequate crewing and skill levels. For the McCloud legal case in relation to the transitional protection arrangements
introduced with the 2015 Firefighters’ Pension Scheme, the Authority has established a smoothing reserve to ensure any payments which may not be not be funded by government grant would be
funded from this reserve as they would be one-off payments.

In the medium term, the Authority’s MTFP for 2021-26 included the following key assumptions:

- 0.2% increase in government funding for 21/22 with a 1% increase in each subsequent year

- decrease in the council tax base of 1% for 21/22 with a 1% increase in each subsequent year;

- and a preceptof 1.99% over the period.

As mentioned previously the lack of recent longer term financial settlements from central government can create uncertainty in financial planning.

The MTFP is refreshed each year and presented alongside the annual budget for the forthcoming year demonstrating that financial risks are considered each year in both the short and medium
term. Solid financial planning means that any budget gaps have been met without using reserves and not using non-recurrent savings. This process also mitigates the risk of unexpected new
requirements impacting on the Authority’s financial resilience. Cashflow is also closely monitored and reviewed on a daily basis. Liquidity is not a major risk for the Authority as it holds a
reasonable amount of cash and cash equivalents and at 31 March 2021 had a balance of £29.07min readily convertible short term investments.

Funding gaps and use of reserves

The funding gap, and savings requirement for the Authority has been relatively low in recent years. The Authority demonstrates through its MTFP that it has forecast balanced budgets for 2021/22
and 2022/23 with potential challenges arsing each year from 2023/24 through to 2026/26 when the funding gap is forecast at £2.163m. The £3m of General fund reserves which the Authority
maintains is sufficient to meet the forecast funding gaps, although this would bring the general fund reserve to below 5% of revenue budget should the Authority have to draw down on this reserve.
The Authority has also been able to budget to set aside a £3m contribution to the TDA reserve in 2021/22.

The Authority has a reserves strategy which it publishes each year alongside the budget, updated MTFP, capital and treasury strategy. In line with the Fire and Rescue National Framework
recommendations the Authority feels that an appropriate and prudent level of general reserves is at 5% of net budget. For 2021/22 the Authority has approved a Committed Reserves balance of
£27.171m of which £15.217m is for the Capital Investment Reserve. The use of this reserve is phased over a two year period in line with the capital programme, primarily in relation to the new TDA and
super fire station project. The level of reserves appears prudent with funds set aside for specific purposes whilst maintaining appropriate general fund reserves in line with national framework recommendations.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report | 30 November 2021 6



GT obed

Commercial in confidence

Financial sustainability

Managing financial resilience

The General Fund Reserve is to cover uncertainties in future years’ budgets such as the possibility of additional savings being required in the future and the potential difficulty in delivering
such savings; extraordinary or unforeseen events occurring; potential insurance liabilities; capital commitments in future years, higher than expected inflation and increasing pensions costs

The Authority’s reserves strategy is taken for approval to the Authority meeting each February alongside the budget. The 20/21 reserves strategy was to have the general fund at 5% of
budget. The actual General Fund reserve balance at 31 March 2021 remained at £3m, which equates to 4.6% (rounded to 5%) of the closing net expenditure on cost of service as at 31 March
2021. This is in the middle range of all 29 English standalone fire authorities, which indicates a reasonable level of financial resilience.

GF as % of net Expenditure on cost of service

14.0%
12.0%
10.0%

8.0%

6.0%
4.0%
U
0.0%

Merseyside

It is not possible to build reserves for every uncertainty into the budget and reserves. What the Authority does well, is include some scenario and sensitivity analysis within the budget and
MTFP setting out the impact of changes to different assumptions, and the impact of this on the budget gap. For each change of 1% in the level of government funding, the impact would be
either a reduction or increase in the budget gap of £0.26m. For every 0.5% above or below the proposed 1.99% Band D council tax increase post 2021, the impact would be a change in
funding levels of approximately £0.15m per annum and likewise a 1% movement in the firefighter pay award would have a potential £0.4m impact on the budget gap. This analysis helps
clarify the impact of changes in the assumptions and will aid informed challenge from members of the Authority.

Summary of findings

Overall, we found no evidence of any significant weaknesses in the Authority’s arrangements for ensuring the Authority can continue to deliver financially sustainable services.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report | 30 November 2021 7



9T abed

Governance

We considered how the Authority:

monitors and assesses risk and
gains assurance over the effective
operation of internal controls,
including arrangements to prevent
and detect fraud

approaches and carries out its
annual budget setting process

ensures effectiveness processes
and systems are in place to ensure
budgetary control

ensures it makes properly informed
decisions, supported by
appropriate evidence and allowing
for challenge and transparency

monitors and ensures appropriate
standards.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Leadership and committee effectiveness

The Senior Leadership Team is supported by the Authority which is
then supported by a committee structure of two main decision
making committees:

*  Community Safety and Protection; and
* Policy and Resources.

In addition to the two main committees there are a number of
scrutiny committees:

* Appointments;

e Audit;

* Joint Fire and Police;
* Scrutiny; and

* Urgency.

Senior officers attend the Authority meetings and Committees to
present reports and are open to questions during committee
meetings. The Authority is made up of 18 councillors from Knowsley,
Liverpool, Sefton, St Helens and Wirral Councils based on the
political balance requirements of the Local Government and
Housing Act 1989.

Through our attendance at Audit Committee meetings, we have
identified that Members would benefit from Member training to
facilitate their ability to question and challenge reports and we
have made an improvement recommendation relating to this.

Improvement Recommendation

The Audit Committee members would benefit from member
training to enhance the effectiveness of their audit and
assurance challenge.

Commercial in confidence

Risk management

The Authority maintains the Corporate Risk Register which focuses
on the missions and aims of the Authority and aligns each risk to a
specific aim.

Overall responsibility for risk management sits with the Authority.
The Senior Leadership Team review the risk register on a regular
basis and risks are reported to the Authority on a bi-annual basis by
the Chief Fire Officer. Members have the opportunity at the
Authority and Committee meetings to consider the risks, potential
impact and associated control measures.

The Corporate Risk Register underpins the Authority’s corporate
planning process and aims to strengthenits Integrated Risk
ManagementPlan (IRMP). Whilst the IRMP summarises how,
through planning, the Authority considers fire and rescue related
dangers that could affect its communities and how it aims to tackle
them, the risk register provides detail on these risks to give context
to its corporate planning process.

Each risk is assigned a risk owner with key actions and are removed
from the register when no longer considered a risk for the Authority.

Following an Internal Audit review in 2017, Members were asked to
consider their risk appetite and tolerance to ensure the status of all
risks is updated regularly. This is now embedded into the risk
management process and Members are aware how important it is
to the Authority that it is updated on all potential dangers and that
Members understand the organisational risks.

The Authority has a low appetite for most types of risk except for
Loss of Strategic Sites and Assets, in particular in relation to fire
station sties where it is acknowledged the options are more limited
and for Environmental and Political where not all activity in relation
to collaborative work with partners may be entirely predictable.

Overall, the arrangements in place to assess and monitor risk are
appropriate.

Auditor’s Annual Report | 30 November 2021 8



/T obed

Governance

Policies, procedures and controls

There are various policies and procedures in place which monitor and ensure compliance
with legislation and regulatory standards. The website has a section with a list of policies,
which include all key policies that we would expect to see, including a Constitution. These are
available online to the public.

Internal audit is provided by Liverpool City Council Internal Audit and their original plan for
20/21 proposed to cover various reviews across governance risk and legality, finance and
resources, performance and operational compliance. The plan needed to be revised in light
of Covid -19. Internal Audit were still able to produce several reports and focussed on
undertaking sufficient work to be able to provide their Head of Internal Opinion. The Head of
Internal Audit opinion concluded that there was overall substantial assurance, i.e. that that
there is a good system of internal control designed to meet the organisation’s objectives, and
that controls are generally being applied consistently. A small number of strategic audits
covering Asset and Inventory Process and Cyber Security were deferred to 2021/22 as a
result of Covid-19. Whilst there is no evidence of significant gaps in the assurance gained by
the Audit Committee, we do note that Internal Audit do not attend the committee meetings so
are not immediately available to respond directly to members questions. We therefore have
raised a recommendationin relation to this.

In respect to the prevention and detection of fraud, the Authority has an Anti-Fraud Policy,
Whistleblowing Policy, as well as a Code of Conduct for Authority Members. The Authority
has adopted the Code of Conduct adapted from the LGA Model 2020 which been adopted
by all Authorities across the Liverpool City Region. This is based on the Seven Principles of
Public Life (Nolan Principles). There is also a gifts and hospitality policy whereby Members or
Officers receiving gifts greater than £60 in value must register these with the Monitoring
Officer. There is a standing item in all Authority and committee meetings to disclose
pecuniary and non-pecuniary interests relating to matters on the agenda. These are
recorded on the Register of Interests, along with any other interests, including directorships,
that have already been declared as required by the Code of Conduct.

The Authority also took part in the National Fraud Initiative which is an exercise that matches
electronic data within and between public and private sector bodies to preventand detect
fraud. These policies, and participation in the National Fraud Initiative, taken as a whole
reflect a strong institutional response to reducing instances of fraud.

Improvement Recommendation

The Fire Authority should consider requesting that Internal Audit attending Audit
Committee meetings in order to provide clarity and context to reports and where
required to provide responses directly to Members. This will ensure Audit Committee
members have a greater understanding of the assurance process.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Commercial in confidence

Treasury Management

The Treasury Management Policy and Strategy is refreshed and approved annually by the
Authority alongside the budget in February. This includes a Treasury Management Policy
Statement, Annual Investment Strategy, and Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) policy as well
as capital plans. A mid-year Treasury Management report is taken to the relevant Authority
meetingand updates the Authority on the progress of the capital position, updates
prudential indicators as necessary, and whether the actual execution of treasury
management s in line with the Strategy or whether any policies need revision. In addition,
there is an Annual Treasury Management report which provides details of a selection of
confirmed prudential and treasury indicators and actual treasury operations compared to
the estimates within the strategy.

Auditor’s Annual Report | 30 November 2021

9



8T abed

Governance

Budget setting and monitoring

The Authority has demonstrated that they have an appropriate annual budget setting
process in place. Key stakeholders are involved in the process, which includes attending the
bi-annual budget and strategy days where budget assumptions are assessed for the coming
financial year and consideration is given to the medium-termfuture. This has resultedin
timely approvals prior to the start of the financial year and regular budget reviews. Service
activity against plan is presented and integrated into the budget and then into monthly
performance reports to allow review and challenge and quarterly financial reporting on the
budget versus outturn position to senior management and TCWG (the Audit Committee). The
budget plan is supported with comprehensive medium term financial plans with budget
setting principles informed by the medium-term strategy and engagement with external
stakeholders.

Although service activity, workforce and financial information is reported to senior
management, these are not integrated reports. Workforce planning and finance are closely
monitored so although the reports may be separate, there is a joint overview of the data
used in both. Performance and financial reporting are not yet quite as integrated for in year-
reporting although they are linked as part of the budget setting process and forward
planning. The CIPFA publication from May 20 ‘integrated reporting application note’
highlights that Integrated reporting can help public sector entities to respond better and to
communicate with greater effect how they develop strategies that add value over time.

Improvement Recommendation

We recommend that Mersey Fire look at integrating financial performance reporting
with service delivery performance reporting. See page 14 for full recommendation.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Commercial in confidence

Finance team capacity

We have not noted a high turnover of finance staff in recent years. Although it is a smaill
team, there is no evidence of a lack of capacity in the finance department, with budget
monitoring and annual accounts being completed to an overall high standard. There is no
evidence of serious or pervasive weaknesses in the Authority’s processes for preparing its
financial statements. This is detailed further in the ‘Opinion on the financial statements’
section of this report. Unmodified audit opinions have been issued on the 2020/21 and
previous financial statements.

However it should be noted that there is a risk involving the loss of specialist finance
knowledge and experience should key members of the finance team leave in the near future.
Summary of findings

Overall, we found no evidence of any significant weaknesses in the Authority’s arrangements
for ensuring that it makes informed decisions and properly manages its risks. We have made
three improvement recommendations, see pages 13 and 4.

Auditor’s Annual Report | 30 November 2021 10



6T abed

Commercial in confidence

Improvement recommendations

. Governance

1 Recommendation The Audit Committee members would benefit from member training to enhance the effectiveness of
their audit and assurance challenge.

Why/impact Without an effective audit committee there is a risk that members are unable to support effective
audit and assurance as well as supporting achievement of the authority’s objectives and robust
internal control and supporting effective arrangements to manage risks.

Auditor judgement Although the Authority meetingembeds the Nolan principles and is committed to a series of
training for members, we have identified there is less questioning or challenge from members
than we would expect.

Summary findings We identified there is scope to further support members of the audit committee by providing
training to members to aid them in the effectiveness of their challenge.

Management The Authority provides training for all members in addition to running learning lunches

comment throughout the year, but the training tends to be generic and not specific to a particular
committee role. Officers are required to present their reports at all committee meetingin order to
ensure Members gain a detailed insight into the report’s subject matter, risks and challenges. If
required Members can also request that any matter identified within the report be considered at
a future Scruting Committee or Learning lunch at which more information can be given.

That being said, the Monitoring Officer and Director of Finance and Procurement (s151 officer),
will look to identify any specific Audit Committee training to enhance the audit and assurance
challenge of all Authority Members.

The range of recommendations that external auditors can make is explained in Appendix C.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report | 30 November 2021 il



0z abed

Commercial in confidence

Improvement recommendations

. Governance

2 Recommendation The Fire Authority should consider requesting that Internal Audit attending Audit Committee
meetings in order to provide clarity and context to reports and where required to provide
responses directly to Members. This will ensure Audit Committee members have a greater
understanding of the assurance process..

Why/impact In order to support the Authority, an effective audit committee needs to have the opportunity to
be able to question Internal Audit for clarification or challenge when reports are presented. If this
is not provided, there is a risk that members are unable to support effective audit and assurance.

Auditor judgement Although questions and clarifications can be directed to Internal Audit post any committee, our
view is that this process would be more effective if members were able to speak to Internal Audit
directly when reports are presented. Often questions raised by members facilitate further
discussion and lead a more robust identification of risk.

Summary findings We identified that Internal Audit do not routinely attend the Audit Committee and there is
therefore scope to improve the opportunities available for members to query and challenge their

reports.
Management Internal Audit are invited to all Audit Committee meetings. They usually attend the meeting but on
comment some occasions the Audit Committee Agenda may not include any relevant internal audit items

and the Director of Finance and Procurement may agree with the lead Internal Audit officer that
they are not required to attend. Going forward a representative from Internal Audit will attend all
future meetings.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report | 30 November 2021 12



T¢ abed

Commercial in confidence

Improvement recommendation

. Governance

3 Recommendation We recommendthat Merseyside Fire look at integrating financial performance reporting with
service delivery performance reporting.

Why/impact Given pressures across the public sector there is a need for organisations to report more effectively
to stakeholders on their performance, viability and future projections. In order to give this rounded
picture, key elements such as performance and financial data need to be integrated or there is a
potential risk that implications of emerging issues are not fully considered.

Auditor judgement Integrated reporting is a key component of good governance. The International Framework: Good
Governance in the Public Sector (CIPFA/IFAC, 2014) emphasises “the need for integration in
both reporting and organisational performance” and makes explicit reference to Integrated
reporting.

Summary findings We identified that the Budgeting process is very well aligned in terms of strategic, capital,
workforce and budget but then in-year delivery performance reporting is not integrated with

reporting.
Management The key strategic planning (non-people] resource strategies for the Authority are the IRMP and
comment Medium Term Financial Plan/Annual Budget. In addition the Authority approves an annual Service

Plan that includes; the key service performance indicators; updates on the directorate function
plans (key directorate deliverables for the year in question); an update on the HMICFRS action
plan; and IRMP actions.

Throughout the year the Authority receives quarterly updates on the service plan performance and
a comprehensive financial review report (that includes the revenue, capital, reserve and treasury
management strategy performance). The two quarterly reports tend to go to the same committee
and therefore allow members to consider financial performance and service delivery performance
together.

The Director of Strategy and Performance and Director of Finance and Procurement will ensure
going forward that the quarterly financial and service performance reports and the year-end
reports go to the same committee and are consecutive items on the agenda. This will allow
Members to consider the overall financial and service performance at one meeting and achieve the
sane outcome as an integrated reporting mechanism.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report | 30 November 2021 13



2¢ abed

Improving economy, efficiency and
effectiveness

&%

We considered how the Authority:

* uses financial and performance
information to assess
performance to identify areas for
improvement

* evaluates the services it provides
to assess performance and
identify areas for improvement

* ensuresit delivers its role within
significant partnerships,
engages with stakeholders,
monitors performance against
expectations and ensures action
is taken where necessary to
improve

* ensures that it commissions or
procures services in accordance
with relevant legislation,
professional standards and
internal policies, and assesses
whether it is realising the
expected benefits.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Identifying areas for improvement

Commercial in confidence

Performance of the Fire Service is monitored by the Authority through quarterly Service Delivery Plan updates which are taken to the Policy and
Resources Committee, and subsequently to the Authority meetings. The performance reports include performance against the key performance
indicators (KPIs) which are set by the Authority. The performance indicators are reviewed annually to ensure they are still relevant for the
Authority. The way performance indicators are monitored and reported is divided into four strands; Summary Indicators, Outcome Indicators
(e.g. reduction in fires and other incidents) which are reported to Authority, Tier 1 Local Performance Indicators, outputs (e.g. number of home
fire safety checks) which are reported to Performance Management Group and tier 2 Local Performance Indicators, lower level outputs which
are reported to Function and Station Management Teams.

The Authority’s performance for 2020/21 against the KPls is summarised below as reported in the Annual Statement of Accounts. These KPls are
aligned with the Authority’s IRMP linking performance to strategy.

TO0D Total number of emergency calls received 20679 Quality 19778
Assurance
TCMH Total number of inci tended 15193 16273 15867
TCO02 Total number of fires in Merseyside 5638 7159 6142
TCO03 Total number of primary fires attended 2093 2282 1770
QTC04 Total number of secondary fires attended 3545 4897 4372
+t . Quality
TCOS Total number of special services attended kKRR Assurance 4250
TCO06 Total number of false alarms attended 5644 5497 5475
. Attendance standard — first attendance of an
TRO8 appliance at a life risk incidents in 10 mins 933% 90.0% 95.4%
TD09 The % of available shifis lost to sickness absence, 4.05% 400% 4979
all personnel
TE10 Total carbon output of all MFRS buildings 58.5 650 574
DWELLING FIRES
Dc11 Mumber of accidental dwelling fires B67 861 799
DC12 Mumber of deaths in dwelling fires 5 g 7
DC13 Nuum lierJoT injuries in accidental dweliing fires a7 0 59
DC14 Mum| ba_r of deliberate dwelling fires in occupied 136 138 139
properties
Mumber of deliberate dwelling fires in unoccupied
DCis properties 16 20 16
DCi6 Mumber of deaths in deliberate dwelling fires 1 1 1]
DCAT MNumber of injuries in deliberate dwelling fires 15 13 14

Within 10% of Target

Target Achieved
Performance 10% worse than last year

NON DOMESTIC PROPERTY

NC11

\ Number of deliberate fires in non-domestic premises

NCA12

| Number of accidental fires in non-domestic premises

128

ANTI SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR

AC11

Number of deliberate vehicle fires attended

AC12

Number of accidental vehicle fires attended

AC13

Number of deliberate anti-social behaviour fires
(small)

AC14

Number of accidental small firss attended

AC15

Number of 'other primary fires attended

ROAD TRAFFIC COLLISIONS

RC11

Number of road traffic collisions (RTC) attended

Quality
Assurance

RC12

Number of injuries in road traffic collisions attended

Quality
Assurance

RC13

Number of fatalities in road traffic collisions attended

Quality

RC14

New: Number of Killed & Seriously Injured (KSI) in
RTC's across Merseyside
Based on Partnership RTC data

Quality
Assurance

RC15

New: Number of KSI's affecting 16-24 age group -
Based on Parinership RTC data

110

FALSE ALARMS

FC11

The number of false alarm calls due to automatic fire
alarm i in Non-Domestic properties

FC12

The number of false alarm calls due to smoke alam
actuation in Domestic propertiss

3137

2949

FC13

Total number of false alarms attended discounting
False Alarm Good Intent

3940

Quality

Assurance

FC22

Number of Malicious False Alarms attended

FC23

Number of False Alarm Good Intent attended

1704

1743

STAFF SICKNESS & INJURIES

WD11

% of available shifts lost to sickness absence per
whale time equivalent GREY book {operational)
personnel

388%

4%

4.05%

wD12

% of available shifts lost to sickness absence per
whole time equivalent GREY book (operational)
persennel

4.29%

4%

4.62%

WR13

Total number of operational staff injuries

26

47

s

Auditor’s Annual Report | 30 November 2021 i



¢¢ obed

Commercial in confidence

Improving economy, efficiency and
effectiveness

Other sources of performance data come from the 2018 HMICFRS report and this had 6 areas forimprovement (AFls). The Authority set an iterative action plan with a suite of actions that underly
the 6 AFI’s - Policy and Resources Committee reviewed the progress every 6 months and it is only being closed now with a view to the latest inspection being received imminently.

The most recent HMIICFRS Covid Inspection completed in 2020/21 highlighted the leading role the Authority has in co-ordinating the Fire Service’s response to the pandemic but also noted that it
determined how it can improve its IT systems so that staff can effectively work remotely and how it will adopt for the longer term, the new and innovative ways of working introduced during the
pandemic to secure last improvements. We acknowledge that the finance team were able to work effectively both remotely and from Head Quarters during the pandemic with no disruption to the
service users.

Working with others

The Authority works with other emergency services across Merseyside as part of a Blue Light Collaboration (BLC). This includes significant collaboration with Merseyside Police in regard to various
corporate support functions. The Authority shares the Joint Control Head Quarters in Bootle with Merseyside Police as well as the North West Ambulance Service being located at a number of
Authority sites. This close working together enables joint training exercises and operational planning meetings as well as the strategic planning through the Joint Fire and Police Collaboration
Committee on which Authority Members sit.

The Authority also collaborates with other emergency services, local authorities and other public bodies when it is advantageous to do so, for example working with local NHS bodies as part of the
vaccination programme and the Authority’s prevention team often working closely with local authorities” youth and social services.

The North West PFI project was established to replace 16 fire stations across Merseyside, Lancashire and Cumbria with the Authority leading the project. The building programme for Merseyside
started in April 2011, with the first station opening in April 2012 and the last station opening in July 2013. The Authority’s Head of Estates attends monthly contract monitoring meetings with the
facilities management provider and receives performance monitoring data each month in relation to the contract.

The Authority played a lead role in the Fire Service’s response to the Covid-19 pandemic, working with a number of agencies nationally and specifically the Chief Fire Officer leading the response
nationally.

Whilst the Ambulance Service has withdrawn funding from the new TDA development; as under the early stages of planning the project, it was provisionally planning to share the building with the
Authority and contribute to the capital costs, this does not reflect on the good working relationships between the two services. The Authority has been able to increase its own contributions to the
project through effective financial planning.

This evidences that the Authority is working with key stakeholders and reflecting on how existing partnerships can be improved to deliver further savings and better services.
Procurement

The Authority has a procurement strategy in place which was last updated in January 2020 and is currently being reviewed to ensure the Modern Slavery Policy is adequate. The Authority also
leads on the Fire & Rescue North West Group that consider a collaborate approach to the procurement of operational goods and services.

Summary of findings

Overall, we found no evidence of any significant weaknesses in the Authority’s arrangements for improving the way the Authority delivers its services.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report | 30 November 2021 15



vz abed

Since March 2020 Covid-
19 has had a significant
impact on the population
as a whole and how
services are delivered.

We have considered how
the Authority’s
arrangements have
adapted to respond to
the new risks they are
facing.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Commercial in confidence

Covid-19 arrangements

Overview

In August 2020, HMICFRS were commissioned by the Home Secretary to inspect how fire and rescue services in England were responding
to the Covid-19 pandemic. In reporting its findings HMICFRS stated that the Service has effectively carried out its statutory functions
during the pandemic. It was impressed by how the service looked after the welfare of its staff, and the additional support it gave to the
community during the first phase of the pandemic.

The majority of the costs relating to the pandemic have been incurred during 2020/21. To assist, additional funding has been provided by
Central Government for some of the expenditure mentioned - specifically around PPE, additional cleaning, creating Covid-19 secure
buildings and overtime relating to Covid-19 restrictions

Following the national lockdown, face to face meetings were cancelled between mid March and May 2020. Authority and committee
meetings moved to video conferencing and took place remotely for the rest of the year. There is evidence within Authority and Committee
meeting minutes, and HMICFRS report that appropriate levels of scrutiny and challenge continued to be applied by members.

All office-based staff were provided with the necessary equipment to work from home, enabling a smooth transition to remote working
where this was possible. Home-based working has continued throughout the pandemic, and the Authority has not seen a significant
impact on productivity as a result. Requiring staff to work from home also supported the Authority’s protection of its frontline staff.

In response to the pandemic, staff from the Merseyside Fire and Rescue Service have been involved in activities including:

* food and prescription deliveries;

* casualty transportation;

* supporting vulnerable persons, including welfare calls and shielding visits;
* delivering PPE and other medical supplies to NHS and care facilities; and
* supporting the vaccine roll out

Summary of findings

Overall, we found no evidence of any significant weaknesses in the Authority’s arrangements
adapted to respond to the new risks they are facing as a result of Covid-19.

Auditor’s Annual Report | 30 November 2021 16



G¢ abed

Commercial in confidence

Opinion on the financial statements

Audit opinion on the financial Preparation of the accounts
statements The Authority provided draft accounts in line with the

national deadline and provided a good set of working
We gave an unqualified opinion on the financial papers to support it.

statements on 22 October 2021

Findi sing f h :
Other opinion/key findings indings arising from the accounts

¢ Arecommendation were made in the relation to the

We issued unmodified opinions in respect of other arrangements management has in place with its valuer
information. to retain the evidence supporting the year end
We did not report any matters by exception. valuations.
. . . *  Wedid not identify any adjustments to the financial
Audit Flndlngs RepOI’t statements that resulted in an adjustment to the
More detailed findings can be found in our AFR, which Authority’s Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement.

was published and reported to the Audit Committee
on 28 September 2021. *  We identified some improvements that were required to
disclosures within the financial statements.
Whole of Government Accounts )
. Grant Thornton provides an
To support the audit of the Whole of Government

Accounts (WGA), we are required to review and report iﬂdependent Opinion on whether the
on thfe WGA return prepored bg,].the Authority. This accounts are:
work includes performing specified procedures under

group audit instructions issued by the National Audit e True and fair

Office. . . .
* Prepared in accordance with relevant accounting
We are not able to complete the work required to issue standards

the WGA Component Assurance until guidance is
available from HM Treasury. We therefore continue to
be unable to certify the completion of the audit for

2020-21. | : i
‘ m&a

% .'_ .g“ I :/.

Prepared in accordance with relevant UK legislation.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report | 30 November 2021 17



Appendices



/¢ abed

Commercial in confidence

Appendix A - Responsibilities of the Fire
and Rescue Service

Role of the accountable officer:

* Preparation of the statement of
accounts

* Assessingthe Authority’s ability to
continue to operate as a going
concern

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Public bodies spending taxpayers’ money
are accountable for their stewardship of the
resources entrusted to them. They should
account properly for their use of resources
and manage themselves well so that the
public can be confident.

Financial statements are the main way in
which local public bodies account for how
they use their resources. Local public bodies
are required to prepare and publish
financial statements setting out their
financial performance for the year. To do
this, bodies need to maintain proper
accounting records and ensure they have
effective systems of internal control.

All local public bodies are responsible for
putting in place proper arrangements to
secure economy, efficiency and
effectiveness from their resources. This
includes taking properly informed decisions
and managing key operational and
financial risks so that they can deliver their
objectives and safeguard public money.
Local public bodies report on their
arrangements, and the effectiveness with
which the arrangements are operating, as
part of their annual governance statement.

The Chief Financial Officer (or equivalent) is
responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements and for being satisfied
that they give a true and fair view, and for
such internal control as the Chief Financial
Officer (or equivalent) determinesis
necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

The Chief Financial Officer (or equivalent)
or equivalent is required to prepare the
financial statementsin accordance with
proper practices as set out in the
CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local
authority accounting in the United Kingdom.
In preparing the financial statements, the
Chief Financial Officer (or equivalent] is
responsible for assessing the Authority’s
ability to continue as a going concern and
use the going concern basis of accounting
unless there is an intention by government
that the services provided by the Authority
will no longer be provided.

The Authority is responsible for putting in
place proper arrangements to secure
economy, efficiency and effectivenessin its
use of resources, to ensure proper
stewardship and governance, and to review
regularly the adequacy and effectiveness of
these arrangements.

Auditor’s Annual Report | 30 November 2021

19



gz abed

Commercial in confidence

Appendix B - Risks of significant
weaknesses - our procedures and findings

As part of our planning and assessment work, we considered whether there were any risks of significant weakness in the
Authority's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources that we needed to perform
further procedures on. As reported in our Audit Plan, we did not identify any risks of significant weakness in the Authority’s
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report | 30 November 2021 20



6¢ obed

Commercial in confidence

Appendix C - An explanatory note on
recommendations

A range of different recommendations can be raised by the Authority’s auditors as follows:

Type of Raised within this
recommendation  Background report Page reference
Written recommendations to the Authority under Section 24 (Schedule 7) of the Local Audit  No Not applicable
Statutory and Accountability Act 2014. A recommendation under schedule 7 requires the Authority to
discuss and respond publicly to the report.
The NAO Code of Audit Practice requires that where auditors identify significant No Not applicable
K weaknesses as part of their arrangements to secure value for money they should make
€y recommendations setting out the actions that should be taken by the Authority. We have
defined these recommendations as ‘key recommendations’.
These recommendations, if implemented should improve the arrangements in place at the ~ Yes Governance - Pages 11-13
Improvement Authority, but are not a result of identifying significant weaknesses in the Authority’s
arrangements.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report | 30 November 2021 21



o€ abed

Commercial in confidence

Appendix D - Use of formal auditor's

powers

We bring the following matters to your attention:

Statutory recommendations

Under Schedule 7 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, auditors can make written
recommendations to the audited body which need to be considered by the body and responded to
publicly

We did not issue any statutory recommendation.

Public interest report

Under Schedule 7 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, auditors have the power to make a report
if they consider a matter is sufficientlyimportant to be brought to the attention of the audited body or the
public as a matter of urgency, including matters which may already be known to the public, but where it is
in the public interest for the auditor to publish their independent view.

We did not issue any public interest reports.

Application to the Court

Under Section 28 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, if auditors think that an item of account is
contrary to law, they may apply to the court for a declaration to that effect.

We did not issue any applications to the Court.

Advisory notice

Under Section 31 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, auditors may issue an advisory notice if
the auditor thinks that the authority or an officer of the authority:

* is about to make or has made a decision which involves or would involve the authority incurring
unlawful expenditure,

* is about to take or has begun to take a course of action which, if followed to its conclusion, would be
unlawful and likely to cause a loss or deficiency, or

* is about to enter an item of account, the entry of which is unlawful.

We did not issue any advisory notices.

Judicial review

Under Section 31 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, auditors may make an application for
judicial review of a decision of an authority, or of a failure by an authority to act, which it is reasonable to
believe would have an effect on the accounts of that body.

We did not issue any judicial reviews.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Auditor’s Annual Report | 30 November 2021

22



T¢ abed

o Grant Thornton

grantthornton.co.uk

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member firms,
as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each
member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not
obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.



IS page is intentionally left blank



e¢ abed

° Grant Thornton

Merseyside Fire & Rescue Authority
Audit Progress Report and Sector Update

Year ending 31 March 2022

February 2022

7 wa)| epusby



¢ abed

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Contents

Section

Introduction

Progress at February 2022

Audit Deliverables

Financial Reporting Council annual report
Sector Update

Page

O N O F

Commercial in confidence

The contents of this report relate only to the
matters which have come to our attention,
which we believe need to be reported to you
as part of our audit planning process. It is
not a comprehensive record of all the
relevant matters, which may be subject to
change, and in particular we cannot be held
responsible to you for reporting all of the
risks which may affect the Authority or all
weaknesses in your internal controls. This
report has been prepared solely for your
benefit and should not be quoted in whole or
in part without our prior written consent. We
do not accept any responsibility for any loss
occasioned to any third party acting, or
refraining from acting on the basis of the
content of this report, as this report was not
prepared for, nor intended for, any other
purpose.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability
partnership registered in England and Wales:
No.OC307742. Registered office: 30 Finsbury
Square, London, EC2A 1AG. A list of members is
available from our registered office. Grant
Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated
by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant
Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant
Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the
member firms are not a worldwide partnership.
Services are delivered by the member firms.
GTIL and its member firms are not agents of,
and do not obligate, one another and are not
liable for one another’s acts or omissions.



Gg obed

Commercial in confidence

Introduction

This paper provides the Audit Committee with a report on progress in

Your key Grant Thornton delivering our responsibilities as your external auditors.

team members are:

Georgia Jones

Key Audit Partner . . .
T 0161214 6383 * asummary of emerging national issues and developments that may be relevant to you as

a local authority; and

The paper also includes:

E Georgia.S.Jones@uk.gt.com
* includes a number of challenge questions in respect of these emerging issues which the
Committee may wish to consider (these are a tool to use, if helpful, rather than formal

Naomi Povey
questions requiring responses for audit purposes)

Senior Manager
T 0151 224 0806

E Naomi.J.Povey@uk.gt.com Members of the Audit Committee can find further useful material on our website, where we
have a section dedicated to our work in the public sector. Here you can download copies of

Ying Li our publications www.grantthornton.co.uk ..

Senior In-charge Auditor If you would like further information on any items in this briefing, or would like to register with

T 01561224 7215 Grant Thornton to receive regular email updates on issues that are of interest to you, please

E Ying.Li@uk.gt.com contact either your Engagement Lead or Engagement Manager.

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 3



9¢ abed

Commercial in confidence

Progress at February 2022

Financial Statements Audit 2020/21

We presented our detailed Audit Findings Report to the 28
September 2021 Audit Committee setting out our response to audit
risks and the proposed audit opinion. We issued our audit opinion
on 22 October 2021. The audit opinion was unqualified and
unmodified.

Our responsibilities include providing an assurance statement on
the Authority’s Whole of Government Accounts consolidation pack
to the National Audit Office (NAO), based upon the 2020/21 audited
financial statements. The NAO has not yet confirmed the data
collection arrangements and therefore our assurance work is
expected during early 2022, after which we will provide our
certification that the audit is completed.

Financial Statements Audit 2021/22

We are currently at the initial planning stage of the 2021/22 audit.
This involves audit risk assessment informed by review of minutes
from assurance committees, review of Internal Audit reports,
meetings with senior officers and an understanding of any changes
to the Code of Practice which may impact upon the Authority.

We will undertake detailed audit planning and interim testing of
balances in the spring of 2022 in order to issue our detailed Audit
Plan in June 2022.

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Value for Money 2020/21

The new Code of Audit Practice (the “Code”) came into force on 1 April
2020 for audit years 2020/21 and onwards. The most significant
change under the new Code is the introduction of an Auditor’s Annuall
Report, containing a commentary on arrangements to secure value
for money and any associated recommendations, if required.

The new approach is more complex, more involved and is planned to
make more impact.

Under the 2020 Code of Audit Practice, for relevant authorities other
than local NHS bodies auditors are required to issue our Auditor’s
Annual Report no later than 30 September or, where this is not
possible, issue an audit letter setting out the reasons for delay.

As a result of the ongoing pandemic, and the impact it has had on
both preparers and auditors of accounts to complete their work as
quickly as would normally be expected, the National Audit Office had
updated its guidance to auditors to allow us to postpone completion
of our 2020/21 work on arrangements to secure value for money and
focus our resources firstly on the delivery of our opinions on the
financial statements. This was intended to help ensure as many as
possible could be issued in line with national timetables and
legislation.

We completed our Value for Money work and issued the Auditor’s
Annual Report in December 2021. We did not identify any risks of
significant weaknesses in the Authority’s arrangements across the
three specific criteria of financial sustainability, governance and
improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness but did identify three
improvement recommendations. Our report is included in the Audit
Committee papers pack.



/€ obed

Commercial in confidence

Progress at February 2022 (cont.)

Other areas

Meetings

We meet with Finance Officers on a regular basis and continue to
be in discussions with finance staff regarding emerging
developments and to ensure the audit process is smooth and
effective. We also met with your Chief Executive and Senior
Leadership Team in November to discuss the Authority’s strategic
priorities and plans.

Events

We provide a range of workshops, along with network events for
members and publications to support the Authority. Your officers
attended our Financial Reporting Workshop in February, which
helped to ensure that members of your Finance Team were up to
date with the latest financial reporting requirements for local
authority accounts.

Further details of the publications that may be of interest to the
Authority are set out in our Sector Update section of this report.

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Audit Fees

During 2017, PSAA awarded contracts for audit for a five year period
beginning on 1 April 2018. 2020/21 is the third year of that contract.
Since that time, there have been a number of developments within the
accounting and audit profession. Across all sectors and firms, the
Financial Reporting Council (FRC) has set out its expectation of
improved financial reporting from organisations and the need for
auditors to demonstrate increased scepticism and challenge and to
undertake additional and more robust testing.

Our work in the Local Government sector in 2018/19 and 2019/20 has
highlighted areas where financial reporting, in particular, property,
plant and equipment and pensions, needs to improve. There is also an
increase in the complexity of Local Government financial transactions
and financial reporting. This combined with the FRC requirement that
all Local Government audits are at or above the “few improvements
needed” (2A) rating means that additional audit work is required.

We have reviewed the impact of these changes on both the cost and
timing of audits. We have discussed this with your s151 Officer
including any proposed variations to the Scale Fee set by PSAA
Limited, and have communicated fully with the Audit Committee in our
audit plan.

The final fee for the 2020/21 audit of £145,966 has been agreed with
your s1561 Officer which is an increase of £6,000 from the proposed fee
as disclosed in the audit plan and audit findings report. This increase
represents the additional audit work performed in relation to the
Authority’s Land and Buildings revaluations and the revised pension
fund valuation.

As a firm, we are absolutely committed to meeting the expectations of
the FRC with regard to audit quality and local government financiall
reporting.



g¢c abed

Audit Deliverables

Commercial in confidence

2020/21Deliverables Planned Date Status
Audit Plan June 2021 Completed
We are required to issue a detailed audit plan to the Audit Committee setting out our proposed

approach in order to give an opinion on the Authority’s 2020/21 financial statements and the

Auditor’s Annual Report on the Authority’s Value for Money arrangements.

Audit Findings Report September 2021 Completed
The Audit Findings Report will be reported to the Audit Committee

Auditors Report October 2021 Completed
This is the opinion on your financial statements.

Auditor’s Annual Report December 2021 Completed
This Report communicates the key issues arising from our Value for Money work.

2021/22 Deliverables (dates to be confirmed) Planned Date Status
Audit Plan June 2022 Not yet due
We are required to issue a detailed audit plan to the Audit Committee setting out our proposed

approach in order to give an opinion on the Authority’s 2021/22 financial statements and the

Auditor’s Annual Report on the Authority’s Value for Money arrangements.

Audit Findings Report November 2022 Not yet due
The Audit Findings Report will be reported to the Audit Committee

Auditors Report November 2022 Not yet due
This is the opinion on your financial statements.

Auditor’s Annual Report Due 3 months after the Not yet due

This Report communicates the key issues arising from our Value for Money work.

audit report

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



6E abed

Commercial in confidence

Financial Reporting Council annual report

On 29 October, the Financial Reporting Council (FRC] published its
annual report setting out the findings of its review of the work of local
auditors. The report summarises the results of the FRC’s inspections of
twenty audit files for the last financial year. A link to the report is here:

FRC AOR Maijor Local Audits October 2021

Grant Thornton are one of seven firms which currently delivers local
audit work. Of our 330 local government and NHS audits, 87 are currently
defined as ‘major audits’ which fall within the scope of the AQR. This
year, the FRC looked at nine of our audits.

Ouir file review results

The FRC reviewed nine of our audits this year. It graded six files (67%) as
‘Good’ and requiring no more than limited improvements. No files were
graded as requiring significant improvement, representing an impressive
year-on-year improvement. The FRC described the improvement in our
audit quality as an ‘encouraging response by the firm to the quality
findings reported in the prior year.” Our Value for Money work continues
to be delivered to a high standard, with all of the files reviewed requiring
no more than limited improvement. We welcome the FRC findings and
conclusions which demonstrate the impressive improvement we have
made in audit quality over the past year.

The FRC also identified a number of good practices including effective
challenge of management’s valuer, use of an auditor’s expert to assist
with the audit of a highly specialised property valuation, and the extent
and timing of involvement by the audit partner on the VFM conclusion.

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Our “Opinion” results over the past three years are shown in the table
below:

Grade Number Number Number
2020/21 2019/20 2018/19

Good with limited
improvements (Grade 1
or2)

Improvements required

(Grade 3)

Significant improvements
required (Grade 4)

Total

3

0

Our “VFM” results over the past two years are shown in the table below. The

FRC did not review VFM in 2018/19:

Grade Number Number
2020/21 2019/20

Good with limited
improvements (Grade 1
or2)

Improvements required

(Grade 3)

Significant improvements
required (Grade 4)

Total

6

0

0

6



0t abed

FRC report (cont.)

Our continued commitment to Audit quality and continuous improvement
Our work over the past year has been undertaken during the backdrop of
COVID-19, when the public sector has faced the huge challenge of
providing essential services and helping safeguard the public during the
pandemic. Our NHS bodies in particular have been at the forefront of the
public health crisis. As auditors we have had to show compassion to NHS
staff deeply affected by the crisis, whilst staying focused on the
principles of good governance and financial management, things which
are more important than ever. We are very proud of the way we have
worked effectively with audited bodies, demonstrating empathy in our
work whilst still upholding the highest audit quality.

Over the coming year we will make further investments in audit quality
including strengthening our quality and technical support functions, and
increasing the level of training, support and guidance for our audit
teams. We will address the specific improvement recommendations
raised by the FRC, including:

o Enhanced training for local auditors on key assumptions within
property valuations, and how to demonstrate an increased level of
challenge

o Formalising our arrangements for the consideration of complex

technical issues by Partner Panels.

As part of our enhanced Value for Money programme, we will focus on
identifying the scope for better use of public money, as well as
highlighting weaknesses in governance or financial stewardship where
we see them.

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Commercial in confidence

Conclusion

Local audit plays a critical role in the way public sector audits and society
interact, and it depends on the trust and confidence of all those who rely
on it. As a firm we’re proud to be doing our part to promote good
governance, effective stewardship and appropriate use of public funds.



T obed

Sector Update

Authorities continue to try to achieve greater efficiency in
the delivery of public services, whilst facing the challenges
to address rising demand, ongoing budget pressures and
social inequality.

Our sector update provides you with an up to date
summary of emerging national issues and developments to
support you. We cover areas which may have an impact on
your organisation, the wider local government sector and
the public sector as a whole. Links are provided to the
detailed report/briefing to allow you to delve further and
find out more.

Our public sector team at Grant Thornton also undertake
research on service and technical issues. We will bring you
the latest research publications in this update. We also
include areas of potential interest to start conversations
within the organisation and with audit committee members,
as well as any accounting and regulatory updates.

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Commercial in confidence

e Grant Thornton Publications

* Insights from local government sector
specialists

* Reports of interest

* Accounting and regulatory updates

More information can be found on our dedicated public sector and
local government sections on the Grant Thornton website by
clicking on the logos below:

Local

Public Sector
government




2t obed

Commercial in confidence

Government response to MHCLG Select
Committee report on Local Authority financial
sustainability & the section 114 regime - MHCLG

Government has published a response to the Housing, Communities &
Local Government (HCLG) Committee report on local authority financial
sustainability and the section 114 regime, published in July.

The MHCLG report states “In recent years, the financial sustainability of
local government has faced successive challenges, including increased
demand for services, especially social care, changes to the level of funding
equalisation between councils and, most recently, the COVID-19 pandemic.
In some instances, councils have been in such acute financial trouble that
they have approached the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local
Government for financial assistance; three of these—Northamptonshire in
2018, Croydon in late 2020 and Slough in July 2021—issued section 114
notices, essentially declaring they had run out of money. Our inquiry has
sought to identify the most serious threats facing local councils’ finances. In
light of the various factors we consider in the report, including the
somewhat delayed Fairer Funding Review, renewed discussion about
property taxes and the need to reform funding for social care, the time is
right to consider a more radical review of local government finances—and
our report makes various recommendations about how this should be done.
We also consider what happened at Croydon—which prompted us to look
at the section 114 regime—in the annex to our report.”

The report includes sections on:

* Social Care

* Funding

+ COVID-19

* Local authority commercial investment

e Audit and control

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

The report made 13 recommendations, and the Government
response to these was published in October. The response notes
“Moving forward, we will work to provide the sector with a
sustainable financial footing, enabling it to deliver vital frontline
service and support other government priorities. We will also take
stock, including of the impact of the pandemic on local authority
resources and service pressures, to determine any future reforms.”

The initial report can be found
here:
https://committees.parliament.uk/
publications/6777/documents/72117

/defoult/

Government response can be
found here:
https://www.gov.uk/government
/publications/local-authority-
financial-sustainability-and-the-
section-114-regime

House of Commons

Housing, Communities and
Local Government Committee

Local authority financial
sustainability and the
section 114 regime

Second Report of Session 2021-22

Report, together with formal minutes relating
to the report

Ordered by the House of Commons
to be printed 14 July 2021




¢ obed

Commercial in confidence

Public Accounts Committee (PAC) - Local auditor
reporting on local government in England &

government response

The PAC inquiry examined the timeliness of auditor reporting on English
local public bodies’ financial statements covering 2019-20. The National
Audit Office (NAO) report, on which this inquiry is based, found that “delays
in the delivery of audit opinions beyond the deadlines for publishing local
authority accounts, alongside concerns about audit quality and doubts
over audit firms” willingness to continue to audit local public bodies,
highlight that the situation needs urgent attention.”

The PAC report found “Without urgent action from government, the audit
system for local authorities in England may soon reach breaking point. With
approximately £100 billion of local government spending requiring audit
each year, the Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Government (the
Department) has become increasingly complacent in its oversight of a local
audit market now entirely reliant upon only eight firms, two of which are
responsible for up to 70% of local authority audits. This has not been helped
by the growing complexity of local authority accounts, with audit firms now
asked to carry out more work in each audit, comply with new regulatory
demands and adapt to the new multifaceted landscape in which local
authorities operate, while also struggling to hire and retain experienced
auditors.”

Key conclusions were:

e The marked decline in the timeliness of external audit undermines
accountability and hampers effective decision-making.

* Thereis a pressing risk of market collapse due to an over reliance on a
small number of audit firms and significant barriers to entry.

* The commercial attractiveness to audit firms of auditing local authorities
has declined.

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

* The rapidly diminishing pool of suitably qualified and experienced
staff increases the risks to the timely completion of quality audits.

* We are not convinced that the recently announced new local audit
arrangements will meet the pressing need for effective system

leadership now.

* Unless local authority accounts are useful, relevant and
understandable they will not aid accountability.

The report made recommendations in each of these areas. The
government response was published on 28 October.

The PAC report and response
can be found here:
Timeliness of local auditor
reporting on local
governmentin England -
Committees - UK Parliament

House of Commons
Committee of Public Accounts

Local auditor reporting
on local government in
England

Eleventh Report of Session 2021-22




17 ebed

2020/21 audited accounts -

Appointments

Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) has reported that only 9% of local
government audits for 2020/21 were completed by the end of September.
This is a sharp contraction on the 45% filed on time for 2019-20, and is the
third successive year where the number of accounts produced on schedule
has reduced.

PSAA state “The challenges posed by COVID-19 have contributed to the
current position. However, a range of further pressures documented in the
Redmond Report are also continuing to impact performance. In particular
there is a shortage of auditors with the knowledge and experience to deliver
the required higher quality audits of statements of accounts, which
increasingly reflect complex structures and transactions, within the

timeframe expected. The growing backlog of audits is also a concern, with
70 of the 2019/20 audits still incomplete.”

Grant Thornton commented “Audit quality remains a priority for our firm
and we continue to work hard with local audit stakeholders to ensure the
delivery of high quality audits in as timely a fashion as is practicable.
Unfortunately, much of this work will be delivered past the 30 September
target date, owing to ongoing constraints posed by the COVID-19 pandemic
and the backlog this has caused. We remain committed to public sector
audit and are now focused on delivering the majority of our local audits by
December 2021.”

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Commercial in confidence

Public Sector Audit

Public Sector

Audit Appointments

The news article can be found here:
https://www.psaa.co.uk/2021/10/news-release-2020-21-
audited-accounts-psaa/




G abed

Commercial in confidence

2023-24 audit appointments - Public Sector

Audit Appointments

Following a consultation exercise Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA)
has invited all principal local government including police and fire bodies to
become opted-in authorities. At the same time it published its procurement
strategy and prospectus for the national scheme from April 2023. Both
documents have evolved in response to the feedback provided by the
market engagement exercise and consultation on the draft prospectus
undertaken during June 2021.

PSAA state “Our primary aim is to secure the delivery of an audit service of
the required quality for every opted-in body at a realistic market price and
to support the drive towards a long term competitive and more sustainable
market for local public audit services.

The objectives of the procurement are to maximise value for local public
bodies by:

* securing the delivery of independent audit services of the required
quality;

* awarding long term contracts to a sufficient number of firms to enable
the deployment of an appropriately qualified auditing team to every
participating body;

* encouraging existing suppliers to remain active participants in local audit
and creating opportunities for new suppliers to enter the market;

* encouraging audit suppliers to submit prices which are realistic in the
context of the current market;

* enabling auditor appointments which facilitate the efficient use of audit
resources;

* supporting and contributing to the efforts of audited bodies and auditors
to improve the timeliness of audit opinion delivery; and

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

* establishing arrangements that are able to evolve in response to changes
to the local audit framework.

PSAA set out the proposed timeline, which anticipates contracts being
awarded in August 2022.

Public Sector

Audit Appointments

The news article can be found here:
https://www.psaa.co.uk/2021/09/psaa-publishes-its-
prospectus-and-procurement-strategy-and-invites-eligible-
bodies-to-opt-in-from-april-2023/

The procurement strategy can be found here:

https://www.psaa.co.uk/about-us/appointing-person-
information/appointing-period-2023-24-2027-
28/procurement-strateqy/




ot abed

Commercial in confidence

Guide to support Value for Money (VfM) analysis
for public managers - CIPFA

The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA] has
published this guide which complements a VM toolkit which has been

published separately. Both were developed under a collaborative project
between Government Outcomes Lab (GO Lab) and CIPFA.

CIPFA state “The guide is aimed at public managers planning to assess
Value for Money (VM) of outcomes-based contract (OBC) programmes, or
any other type of programme with an outcome-focus, using prospective
information. This involves assessing economic validity of the programme
with respect to ‘doing nothing’ as well as the closest comparator.”

CIPFA explain that the guide:

A guide to support Value
for Money (VIM) analysis

for public managers
* Describes what VfM represents in public provision of social services with

a special focus on outcome-based contracts (OBCs). In particular the
guide emphasises the link between economy and effectiveness criteria.

July 2021

* Promotes thinking about longer-term effects of interventions, such as
outcomes and impact, at the design/ planning stage of programmes.
This means that having a good appreciation for efficiency is helpful but
not necessary, especially when outcomes are both identifiable and
measurable.

* Explain how it could be used to appraise public programmes with respect
to anticipated costs and value of them using prospective information.

The guide is available to CIPFA members through the website.

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 14



)t abed

Commercial in confidence

Climate change risk: A good practice guide for
Audit and Risk Assurance Committees - NAO

The National Audit Office (NAO) has published this guide to help Audit
Committees recognise how climate change risks could manifest themselves
and support them in challenging senior management on their approach to
managing climate change risks.

The NAO comment “Audit and Risk Assurance Committees (ARACs) play a
key role in supporting and advising the board and Accounting Officer in
their responsibilities over risk management.

This guide will help ARACs recognise how climate change risks could
manifest themselves and support them in challenging senior management
on their approach to managing climate change risks. We have outlined
specific reporting requirements that currently apply.

Our primary audience is ARAC chairs of bodies that we audit, but the
principles of the guide will be relevant for bodies across the wider public
sector. It promotes good practice and should not be viewed as mandatory
guidance.

Climate change and the nature of its impacts on organisations globally is
changing rapidly. This guide acknowledges the evolving nature of climate
change and its associated risks and opportunities and will be refreshed in
the future to reflect those changes.”

The guide includes sections on “How to support and challenge
management”. This includes sections on governance and leadership;
collaboration; risk identification and assessment; risk treatment, monitoring
and reporting and continual improvement. There is also a “Complete list of
questions that Audit and Risk Assurance Committees can ask” for each of
these areas. The guide also includes “Key guidance and good practice
materials” with links.

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Good practice guide

Climate change risk: A good practice guide  NatonalAudioffice
for Audit and Risk Assurance Committees

August 2021

We are the UK's independent
public spending watchdog

The report can be found here:

Climate change risk: A good practice guide for Audit and
Risk Assurance Committees - National Audit Office (NAQO)

Report




81 abed

Commercial in confidence

Local government and net zero in England - NAO

The National Audit Office (NAQ) report responds to a request from the
Environmental Audit Committee to examine local government and net zero.
It considers how effectively central government and local authorities in
England are collaborating on net zero, in particular to:

« clarify the role of local authorities in contributing to the UK’s statutory net
zero target; and

* ensure local authorities have the right resources and skills for net zero.

The NAO comment “While the exact scale and nature of local authorities’
roles and responsibilities in reaching the UK’s national net zero target are to
be decided, it is already clear that they have an important part to play, as a
result of the sector’s powers and responsibilities for waste, local transport
and social housing, and through their influence in local communities.
Government departments have supported local authority work related to
net zero through targeted support and funding. However, there are serious
weaknesses in central government’s approach to working with local
authorities on decarbonisation, stemming from a lack of clarity over local
authorities’ overall roles, piecemeal funding, and diffuse accountabilities.
This hampers local authorities” ability to plan effectively for the long-term,
build skills and capacity, and prioritise effort. It creates significant risks to
value for money as spending is likely to increase quickly.

MHCLG, BEIS and other departments recognise these challenges and are
taking steps to improve their approach. Their progress has understandably
been slowed by the COVID-19 pandemic, but there is now great urgency to
the development of a more coherent approach.”

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Key findings include:

* Central government has not yet developed with local authorities any
overall expectations about their roles in achieving the national net zero

target.

* There is little consistency in local authorities’ reporting on net zero, which
makes it difficult to get an overall picture of what local authorities have

achieved.

* Neither MHCLG nor HM Treasury has assessed the totality of funding
that central government provides to local government that is linked with

net zero.

The report can be
found here:

https://www.nao.org.u

k/report/local-
government-and-net-

zero-in-england/

Local government and
net zero in England

HM Government

National Audit Office




61 obed

Commercial in confidence

Cyber and information security: Good practice

guide - NAO

The National Audit Office (NAO) has published this guide to help Audit
Committees scrutinise cyber security arrangements. To aid them, this
guidance complements government advice by setting out high-level
questions and issues for audit committees to consider.

The NAO state “Audit committees should gain the appropriate assurance for
the critical management and control of cyber security and information risk.

Cyber security is the activity required to protect an organisation’s data,
devices, networks and software from unintended or unauthorised access,
change or destruction via the internet or other communications systems or
technologies. Effective cyber security relies on people and management of
processes as well as technical controls.

Our guide supports audit committees to work through this complexity, being
able to understand and question the management of cyber security and
information risk.

It takes into account several changes which affect the way in which we
interact with and manage our information and can drive increased risk.
These include changes to the way we work and live due to the COVID-19
pandemic and the ongoing demand to digitise and move to cloud-based
services.

The strategic advice, guidance and support provided by government has
also been updated to keep pace with these changes, detailing the impact
and risks on the management of cyber security and information risk.

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

The guide provides a checklist of questions and issues covering:

The overall approach to cyber security and risk management
Capability needed to manage cyber security

Specific aspects, such as information risk management, engagement and
training, asset management, architecture and configuration, vulnerability
management, identity and access management, data security, logging and
monitoring and incident management.”

National Audit Office

Good practice guide

Cyber and information security

The report can be found here:

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/c
yber-security-and-information-

risk-guidance/

OCTOBER 2021



0S abed

O Grant Thornton

grantthornton.co.uk

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member firms,
as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each
member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not
obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.



Agenda Iltem 5

MERSEYSIDE FIRE AND RESCUE AUTHORITY

MEETING OF THE: | AUDIT COMMITTEE
DATE: 10™ FEBRUARY 2022 REPORT CFO/002/22
NO:
PRESENTING IAN CUMMINS
OFFICER
RESPONSIBLE IAN CUMMINS REPORT IAN CUMMINS
OFFICER: AUTHOR:
OFFICERS STRATEGIC LEADERSHIP TEAM
CONSULTED:
TITLE OF REPORT: | FINANCIAL REVIEW 2021/22 - OCTOBER TO DECEMBER
APPENDICES: APPENDIX A1: REVENUE BUDGET MOVEMENTS
SUMMARY
APPENDIX A2: FIRE AND RESCUE SERVICE
REVENUE BUDGET MOVEMENTS
APPENDIX A3: CORPORATE SERVICE REVENUE
BUDGET MOVEMENTS
APPENDIX A4: BUDGET MOVEMENTS ON
RESERVES
APPENDIX B: CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2021/22
APPENDIX C: APPROVED AUTHORITY CAPITAL
PROGRAMME 2021/22 — 2025/26

Purpose of Report

1. To review the financial position, (revenue, capital, reserves, and treasury
management activities), for the Authority for 2021/22. The Authority receives
regular comprehensive financial reviews during the year which provide a full health
check on the Authority’s finances. This report covers the period October to
December 2021.

Recommendation

2. That Members;

a. note the contents of the report;

b. approve the proposed revenue and capital budget alignments;

c. approve the reserve adjustments as outlined in the report, and use the
£0.800m forecast favourable revenue variance to fund an increase in
the capital investment reserve in order to contribute towards the cost of
a new TDA development; and

d. instruct the Director of Finance and Procurement to continue to work
with budget managers to maximise savings in 2021/22.

Page 51



Executive Summary

Revenue:

The Authority approved a five-year medium-term financial plan (MTFP) at the
Budget Authority meeting on 25 February 2021. The approved MTFP
delivered a balanced budget for 2021/22 based on key budget assumptions
around future costs, in particular pay awards. This report updates members
on the 2021/22 budget position and any issues arising in the year that may
impact on the current and future years’ financial position.

This report identifies a net favourable variance of £0.800m, of which £0.356m
relates to the PFI refinancing gain.

Members are asked to approve the use of this favourable variance to fund an
increase in the capital investment reserve in order to contribute towards the
cost of a new TDA development.

The total budget requirement remains at the original budget level of
£59.250m. Appendix A1 — A4 outline in detail all the revenue budget and
reserve movements between October and December 2021.

Capital:

The capital programme planned spend has increased by £0.810m in the
quarter, of which £0.770m relates to the Emergency Service Network (ESN)
investment approved at Policy and Resources Committee in December. The
balance, £0.040m, is for new schemes funded from revenue. The revised
Capital Programme is outlined in Appendix B and C.

Reserves & Balances:
The general balance remains unchanged at £3.000m. All movements in
committed reserves are outlined in Appendix A4.

Treasury Management:

No new long-term borrowing has been arranged and the Authority has
continued its policy of reducing investments and only taking short term
borrowing to cover cash flow requirements.

Page 52



Introduction and Background

3.

The purpose of this report is to enable the Authority to monitor its income and
expenditure levels against its budget on a regular basis throughout the year to
ensure effective financial management.

This report is the review of the Authority’s position up to the end of December of
the financial year 2021/22 (April — December 2021).

In order to ensure that the financial reviews provide a regular and effective
financial health check on all aspects of the Authority’s finances the following
structure has been adopted.

Financial Review Structure

Section Content

A Current Financial Year Review:-
e Revenue Budget,
e Capital Programme, and
¢ Movement on Reserves

B Treasury Management Review

(A) Current Financial Year — 2021/22

6.

The purpose of the financial review report is to provide Members with an
assurance that the approved budget remains robust and that the current forecast
of expenditure can be contained within the available resources. If actual
expenditure or income for the year is inconsistent with the current budget then
the report will, if necessary, identify the appropriate corrective action.

Revenue Position:

Budget Movements: there have been a number of budget adjustments with no
net impact because they are either self-balancing virements within department
budgets or budget increases financed by reserves in line with previously agreed
Authority decisions. The budget adjustments in quarter 3 included: -

e A £0.026m contribution to the capital reserve to reflect previously
drawndown funds for the development of the CFRMIS application that are
no longer required in 2021/22.

e A £3.556m contribution to the capital reserve to reflect previously
drawndown funds for the new TDA development that are no longer required
in 2021/22 as the scheme is not expected to commence until 2022/23.

e Various drawdowns from reserves totally £0.059m to fund planned
investment in equipment and refurbishment works.

e Self-balancing virements to cover small adjustments within other budget
lines.

Page 53



10.

11.

12.

13.

The net budget requirement remains at £59.250m that is consistent with the
original budget.

Update on Budget Assumptions and actual expenditure:

No significant unplanned growth pressures would materialise in the year -
The budget assumes all spending requirements can be met from the approved
budget. The following paragraphs consider the December forecast outturn
position and the identified variances;

Employee Costs;

Employee costs make-up approximately 75% of the Authority’s revenue budget
and is the most risk critical area of the financial plan. As a result, these costs are
monitored extremely closely.

A small £0.144m favourable variance is forecast that is mainly due to some costs
now being funded from external resources and freeing up the base employee
budget in 2021/22.

Non-Employee Costs;

Premises;

Following successful rating valuation appeals and the freeing up of the old St
Helens fire station rates, officers have identified a one-off saving on business
rates of £0.100m.

PFI Re-Financing Gain;

The November Authority meeting considered report CFO/61/21 on the potential
savings that may arise if the Service supported the PFI provider’'s request to allow
the refinancing of the senior debt associated. The Authority supported the
request and the estimated saving for the Authority was upwards of £0.260m. The
actual saving following the completion of the refinancing arrangement with the
bank is £0.356k. The saving has been taken as a one-off saving in 2021/22.

Contingency for 2021/22 Pay & Price Increases;

Officers are continuing to control the allocation of non-employee inflation. In the
first instance, any inflationary pressure is expected to be absorbed from within
the relevant budget line. A favourable variance of £0.200m has been identified.

Overall the latest forecast has identified a favourable net revenue variance of

£0.800m, the table overleaf summarises the year-end forecast position based on
spend to the end of December 2021:

Page 54



14.

15.

16.

Anticipated Year-End Revenue Position
ACTUAL

TOTAL us at FORE- | VARI-
BUDGET | 5. 51 CAST ANCE
£'000 £'000 £'000 | £'000
Expenditure
Employee Costs 53,478 40,111 53,334 -144
Premises Costs 3,043 1,625 2,943 -100
Transport Costs 7,736 5,985 7,736 0
Supplies and Services 7,218 4,911 7,218 0
Agency Services 7,223 4604 6867  -356
Central Support Services 588 412 588
Capital Financing 5,842 0 5,842
Income -26,641| -26,052| -26,641 0
Net Expenditure 58,487 31,596 57,887 -600
Contingency Pay&Prices 644 0 444 -200
Cost of Services 59,131 31,596 58,331 -800
Interest on Balances -172 -43 -172 0
Movement on Reserves 291 0 291 0
Total Operating Cost 59,250 31,553 58,450 -800

The Director of Finance and Procurement recommends that members use the
favourable variance to fund a £0.800m increase in the capital reserve in order to
contribute towards the cost of a new TDA development.

Capital Programme Position:

The last financial review report (CFO/061/21) approved a 5-year capital
programme worth £57.742m. This has now been updated for scheme additions
and changes during quarter 3 of £0.810m, as outlined below:-

Following a review of the 2021/22 programme, officers have now revised the
timing of actual spend and have re-phased £10.485m from 2021/22 into future
years. The most significant re-phasing related to:-

a) The Building & Land Programme, £6.264m. As Members are aware officers
are currently seeking planning permission for a new TDA scheme and
subject to Members final approval the scheme is likely to commence in the
summer of 2022. Therefore, £3.556m of the new TDA scheme budget has
been re-phased into 2022/23. Plans are currently being finalised, planning
approval applied for, tender evaluation work carried out on a number of
smaller building projects resulting in a re-phasing of £2.708m from 2021/22
into 2022/23.

b) Vehicles, £3.612m. Orders have been raised for fire appliances but the
delivery of the vehicles is expected in early 2022/23 resulting in the re-
phasing of £1.140m of planned spend. Officers are considering various
options around the provision of the marine rescue vessels and therefore
have re-phased the purchase of a new vessel, £0.358m into 2022/23. The
specification for the new Incident Command Unit (ICU) £0.650m, is to be
based around the command room for the new TDA, and therefore is being
delayed while the new TDA plans are being finalised. The ICU specification

Page 55



will be written this year and the order for the vehicle is expected to be made
in 2022/23. Orders for the remaining ancillary and other vehicles will be made
in early 2022/23, once the Strategic Estates Group review the project
management requirements for MFRA to ensure compliance with the
Government’s “Green Plan”, and therefore a further £1.464m has been re-
phased into 2022/23.

c) The balance, £0.609n relates to the re-phasing of various ICT, operational
equipment and is due to delays in finalising specifications, ongoing reviews
to establish the preferred solution, or assets having a longer life than
expected.

Members considered report CFO/073/21 at the Policy and Resources Committee
in December 2021, on the ICT investment required to make the Authority
Emergency Service Network (ESN) technically ready. This required investment
in the existing Dispatch Communications Server (DCS) of £0.108m, and new
ESN ICT equipment of £0.662m.

New ICT hardware funded by revenue, £0.020m, and new energy conservation
schemes, £0.020m, funded from the energy reserve have been added to the
capital programme in the quarter.

The capital programme changes are summarised in table below;

Movement in the 5 Year Capital Programme

I;:)t:tl 2021/22 | 2022/23 | 2023/24 | 2024/25 | 2025/26
Expenditure £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Amendments to Approved Schemes;
CFO/073/21 ESN Ready & DCS Upgrade 770.0 770.0
Additional ICT hardware 19.5 19.5
Energy Conservation Schemes 20.0 20.0
Qtr 3 Re-phasing 0.0/ -10,484.8| 10,460.8 24.0
809.5| -10,445.3| 11,230.8 24.0 0.0 0.0
Funding
Reserves
Energy Reserve 20.0 20.0
Revenue (RCCO)
CFO/073/21 ESN Ready & DCS Upgrade 595.0 595.0
ICT Hardware 19.5 19.5
Borrowing
CFO/073/21 ESN Ready & DCS Upgrade 175.0 175.0
Qtr 3 Re-phasing 0.0/ -10,484.8| 10,460.8 24.0
809.5| -10,445.3| 11,230.8 24.0 0.0 0.0

The revised detailed capital programme is attached as Appendix B (2021/22
Capital Programme) and Appendix C (2021/22—-2025/26 Capital Programme) to
this report.

Use of Reserves:
The analysis in Appendix A4 outlines a net £3.523m contribution to reserves
during the third quarter of 2021/22, as a result of: -
e A £3.556m contribution to the capital reserve to reflect previously
drawndown funds for the new TDA development that are no longer

Page 56




22.

23.

required in 2021/22 as the scheme is not expected to commence until
2022/23.

e A £0.026m contribution to the capital reserve to reflect previously
drawndown funds for the development of the CFRMIS application that are
no longer required in 2021/22.

e A £0.020m drawdown from the energy reserve to fund new energy
conservation schemes in the capital programme.

e Various drawdowns from reserves, £0.039m, to fund the planned
investment in equipment and projects.

As outlined in paragraph 14, and subject to Members’ approval, this report
recommends using the quarter 3 forecast £0.800m favourable variance to fund
an increase in the capital reserve in order to contribute towards the cost of a new
TDA development.

The general revenue reserve has remained unchanged at £3.000m.

(B) Treasury Management

24.

25.

The Authority continues to “buy in” Treasury Management from Liverpool City
Council. The following paragraphs reflect Treasury Management activities in the
period October to December 2021.

Prospects for Interest Rates;
The economic recovery from coronavirus pandemic, together with higher inflation
and higher interest rates were major issues over the period.

The Bank of England (BoE) increased Bank Rate to 0.25% in December 2021
but maintained its Quantitative Easing programme at £895 billion. The Monetary
Policy Committee (MPC) voted 8-1 in favour of raising rates, and unanimously to
maintain the asset purchase programme.

Within the announcement the MPC noted that the pace of the global recovery
was broadly in line with its November Monetary Policy Report. Prior to the
emergence of the Omicron coronavirus variant, the Bank also considered the UK
economy to be evolving in line with expectations, however the increased
uncertainty and risk to activity the new variant presents, the Bank revised down
its estimates for Q4 GDP growth to 0.6% from 1.0%. Inflation was projected to
be higher than previously forecast, with CPI likely to remain above 5% throughout
the winter and peak at 6% in April 2022. The labour market was generally
performing better than previously forecast and the BoE now expects the
unemployment rate to fall to 4% compared to 4.5% forecast previously, but notes
that Omicron could weaken the demand for labour.

Gross domestic product (GDP) grew by 1.1% in the third calendar quarter of
2021 according to the final estimate (initial estimate 1.3%) with the annual rate
slowing to 6.8% from 23.6%. The data however predates the escalation in virus
infections caused by the Omicron variant in December which will very likely result
in a slowdown in activity in Q4.

Page 57



26.

27.

The global recovery from the pandemic has entered a more challenging phase.
The resurgence in demand has led to the expected rise in inflationary pressure,
but disrupted factors of supply are amplifying the effects, increasing the likelihood
of lower growth rates ahead. The advent of the Omicron variant of coronavirus is
affecting activity and is also a reminder of the potential downside risks.

Treasury advisors now expect Bank Rate to rise again in Q1 2022. It is
anticipated that the MPC will want to build on the strong message it delivered in
December by tightening policy despite Omicron uncertainty. Therefore, it is
expected that the BOE rate will rise to 0.50% in Q1 2022, but then remain there.
Risks to the forecast are initially weighted to the upside but becoming more
balanced over time.

Gilt yields are expected to remain broadly flat from current levels. Yields have
fallen sharply at the longer end of the yield curve, but expectations of a rise in
Bank Rate have maintained short term gilt yields at higher levels.

Easing expectations for Bank Rate over time could prompt the yield curve to
steepen, as investors build in higher inflation expectations. The risks around the
gilt yield forecasts vary. The risk for short and medium term yields is initially on
the upside but shifts lower later. The risk for long-term yields is weighted to the
upside.

The current environment remains consistent with the strategy that indicated that
the overall structure of interest rates whereby short-term rates would be lower
than long-term rates was expected to remain throughout 2021/22. In this
scenario, the strategy was to reduce investments and borrow for short periods
and possibly at variable rates when required.

Capital Borrowings and the Portfolio Strategy;

The borrowing requirement comprises the expected movements in the Capital
Financing Requirement and reserves plus any maturing debt which will need to
be re-financed. The Authority does not envisage that any new long term
borrowing will be required in 2021/22. Current market conditions continue to be
unfavourable for any debt rescheduling.

Annual Investment Strategy;

The investment strategy for 2021/22 set out the priorities as the security of capital
and liquidity of investments. Investments are made in accordance with DLUHC
Guidance and CIPFA Code of Practice. Investments are made in sterling with an
institution on the counterparty list.

Extreme caution has been taken in placing investments to ensure security of
funds rather than rate of return. The use of deposit accounts with highly rated or
nationalised banks and AAA rated money market funds has enabled reasonable
returns in a low interest rate environment. In the period 1st Oct to 31 Dec 2021,
the average rate of return achieved on average principal available was 0.08%.
This compares with an average seven-day deposit (7-day libid) rate of -0.07%.
The credit ratings and individual limits for each institution within the categories of
investments to be used by the Authority in 2021/22 are as follows:

Page 58



UK Government (including gilts and the DMADF)
UK Local Authorities (each)
Part Nationalised UK banks
Money Market Funds (AAA rated)

Enhanced Money Market (Cash) Funds (AAA rated)

Ultra-Short Duration Bond Funds (AAA rated)

UK Banks and Building Societies (A- or higher rated)
Foreign banks registered in the UK (A or higher rated)

Unlimited

Unlimited
£4m
£3m
£3m
£3m
£2m
£2m

No limits on investments with the UK Government and Local Authorities have
been set because they are considered to be of the highest credit quality and are
essentially risk free. The limits placed on other categories reflect some
uncertainty and marginally higher risk profile of the institutions within those

categories.

The Authority had investments of £51.200m as at 31st December 2021:-

ANALYSIS OF INVESTMENTS END OF QUARTER 3 2021/22

*MM Fund - Money Market Funds -these are funds that spread the risk associated with investments over a wide range of credit

worthy institutions.

Institution Credit | 1M Fungr DMADF | Bank/Other | BU19ING || ool Authority] AVerage
Rating Interest
£ £ £ %
CCLA Investment Management AAA 2,300,000 0.26
Debt Management Account Deposit Facility AAA 5,000,000 0.10
Federated Investors AAA 1,500,000 0.10
Morgan Stanley AAA 1,400,000 0.30
Bank of Scotland (HBOS) A 2,000,000 0.30
HSBC (MFRS Deposit Account) A 1,000,000 0.10
Santander A 2,000,000 0.76
Sumitomo A 2,000,000 0.50
Coventry BS 2,000,000 0.30
Cumberland B Soc 1,000,000 0.30
2,000,000 0.90
2,000,000 0.30
2,000,000 0.18
Principality B Soc 1,000,000 0.60
West Bromwich BS 1,000,000 0.10
2,000,000f 0.30
Blackpool Council 2,000,000{ 0.61
Cheshire East BC 3,000,000/ 0.60
City of Kingston upon Hull 3,000,000| 0.36
3,000,000, 0.60
2,000,000( 0.60
London Fire Commissioner 2,000,000( 0.80
North Lanarkshire 2,000,000{ 0.60
2,000,000( 0.60
2,000,000f 0.71
Totals 5,200,000 5,000,000 7,000,000 11,000,000 23,000,000 0.44
Total Current Investments 51,200,000

**DMADF is an account offered by the Debt Management Office, (DMO), and is guaranteed by the UK government. The DMO is an Executive Agency of Her
Majesty's Treasury. The DMO's responsibilities include debt and cash management for the UK Government, lending to local authorities and managing
certain public sector funds. As the DMADF is part of HM Treasury and represent the safest counterparty the Authority can use and as such the investment

limit in the strategy is unlimited.

Page 59




28.

External Debt Prudential Indicators;
The external debt indicators of prudence for 2021/22 required by the Prudential
Code were set in the strategy as follows:

Authorised limit for external debt: £62 million
Operational boundary for external debt: £57 million

Against these limits, the maximum amount of debt reached at any time in the
period 1 Oct to 30 Sept 2021 was £36.9 million.

29. Treasury Management Prudential Indicators;
The treasury management indicators of prudence for 2021/22 required by the
Prudential Code were set in the strategy as follows:
a) Interest Rate Exposures
Upper limit on fixed interest rate exposures: 100%
Upper limit on variable interest rate exposures: 50%
The maximum that was reached in the period 1 Oct to 31 Dec 2021 was as
follows:
Upper limit on fixed interest rate exposures: 100%
Upper limit on variable interest rate exposures: 0%
b) Maturity Structure of Borrowing
Upper and lower limits for the maturity structure of borrowing were set and the
maximum and minimum that was reached for each limit in the period 15t Oct to
315t Dec 2021 was as follows: -
Maturity Period Upper Lower Maximum | Minimum
Limit Limit

Under 12 months 50% 0% 9% 5%

12 months and within 24 months 50% 0% 1% 0%

24 months and within 5 years 50% 0% 0% 0%

5 years and within 10 years 50% 0% 0% 0%

10 years and above 95% 0% 95% 91%

c¢) Total principal sums invested for periods longer than 365 days

The limit for investments of longer than 365 days was set at £2 million for

2021/22. No such investments were placed in the third quarter of 2021/22.

Equality and Diversity Implications

30. There are no equality and diversity implications contained within this report.

Page 60



Staff Implications

31. There are no staff implications contained within this report.

Legal Implications

32. There are no legal implications directly related to this report.

Financial Implications & Value for Money

33. See Executive Summary.

Risk Management, Health & Safety, and Environmental Implications

34. There are no Risk Management, Health & Safety and Environmental
implications directly related to this report.

Contribution to Our Vision: To be the best Fire & Rescue Service in the UK.

Our Purpose: Here to serve, Here to protect, Here to keep you safe.

35. The achievement of actual expenditure within the approved financial plan and
delivery of the expected service outcomes is essential if the Service is to achieve
the Authority’s Mission.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

CFO/010/21 “MFRA Budget and Financial Plan 2021/2022-2025/2026” Authority 25th
February 2021.

CFO/067/21 “Financial Review 2021/22 — April to September” Policy and Resources
Committee 16th December 2021.

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

CFRMIS Community Fire Risk Management Information System
TDA Training and Development Academy

ICT Information and communications technology

PFI Private Finance Initiative

ESN Emergency Service Network

DCS Dispatch Communications Server

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



2021/22 REVENUE BUDGET MOVEMENT SUMMARY

APPENDIX A1

Actual Base Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Reserve . Qtr 3
2020/21 SERVICE REQUIREMENTS Budget Budget Budget Draw- |Virements| Budget
2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 down 2021/22
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
54,379 Fire Service 62,756 61,386 61,514 -3,523 9 58,000
465|Corporate Management 487 487 487 0 0 487
0|NRAT Lead Authority (Budget Neutral) 0 0 0 0 0 0
54,844 63,243 61,873 62,001 -3,523 9 58,487
0|Contingency for Pay/Price Changes 655 1,261 653 0 -9 644
54,844 TOTAL SERVICE EXPENDITURE 63,898 63,134 62,654 -3,523 0 59,131
-199 |Interest on Balances -172 -172 -172 0 0 -172
54,645 NET OPERATING EXPENDITURE 63,726 62,962 62,482 -3,523 0 58,959
Contribution to/(from) Reserves:
Emergency Related Reserves
-154| Facing The Future COVID-19 Reserve 0 -200 -200 0 0 -200
3,788 Collection Fund Deficit Reserve -2,403 -2,403 -2,403 0 0 -2,403
Modernisation Challenge
0| Smoothing Reserve 0 -412 -412 0 0 -412
55| Pensions Reserve 0 220 520 0 0 520
-1,000( Recruitment Reserve 0 0 -150 0 0 -150
-266| Invest to Save Reserve 0 0 0 0 0 0
5,158 |Capital Investment Reserve -1,965 -295 -470 3,682 0 3,112
4(PFl Annuity Reserve -91 -91 -91 0 0 -91
Specific Projects
41| Community Sponsorship Reserve 0 0 0 -19 0 -19
61| Equipment Reserve 0 0 0 -15 0 -15
5| Health and Wellbeing Reserve 0 0 -20 0 0 -20
-200( Inflation Reserve 0 -500 26 0 0 26
-303| Clothing Reserve 0 0 -25 0 0 -25
Ringfenced Reserves
0| Princes Trust Reserve -106 -106 -82 0 0 -82
-10| Community Risk Management Reserve 0 0 0 -5 0 -5
89| Energy Reserve 89 75 75 -20 0 55
48| New Dimensions Reserve 0 0 0 0 0 0
7,316 Movement in Reserves -4,476 -3,712 -3,232 3,523 0 291
61,961 BUDGET REQUIREMENT 59,250 59,250 59,250 0 0 59,250
-31,433|Settlement Funding Assessment -31,492 -31,492 -31,492 0 0 -31,492
-225(Collection Fund Deficit 2,836 2,836 2,836 0 0 2,836
-30,303 [Precept Income -30,594 -30,594 -30,594 0 0 -30,594
-61,961 BUDGET FUNDING -59,250 -59,250 -59,250 0 0 -59,250

Page 63




2021/22 FIRE SERVICE REVENUE BUDGET MOVEMENT

APPENDIX A2

Actual Base Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Reserve ' Qtr 3
2020/21 SERVICE REQUIREMENTS Budget Budget Budget Draw- |Virements| Budget
2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 down 2021/22
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
EMPLOYEES
Uniformed
32,552 Firefighters 33,948 33,948 34,339 34,339
1,350 Control 1,431 1,431 1,448 1,448
2,343| Additional Hours 1,286 1,286 1,301 1,301
36,245 TOTAL UNIFORMED 36,665 36,665 37,088 0 37,088
APT&C and Manual
9,935 APT&C 10,192 10,296 9,929 10 9,939
147 Tender Drivers 144 144 144 144
177 Catering 197 197 196 196
597 Transport Maintenance 630 630 630 630
52 Hydrant Technicians 53 53 53 53
76 Casuals 0 10 25 25
10,984 TOTAL APT&C/MANUAL 11,216 11,330 10,977 10 10,987
Other Employee Expenses
70( Allowances 58 61 60 1 61
0 Removal Expenses 1 1 1 1
407 Training Expenses 455 491 686 -27 659
1 Other Expenses 12 12 12 12
1 Staff Advertising 7 8 9 9
54 Development Expenses 80 80 84 41 125
144 Employee Insurance 144 147 147 147
-157 MPF Pen Fixed Rate -163 -163 -163 -163
55 Enhanced Pensions 52 52 52 52
4 SSP & SMP Reimbursements 0 0 0 0
119 Catering Expenditure 118 118 118 118
-245 HFRA Capitalisation Payroll -375 -375 -375 -375
463| TOTAL OTHER EMPLOYEE EXPENSES 389 432 631 15 646
Pensions
1,773 Injury Pension 1,790 1,790 1,790 1,790
4| Sanction Charges 21 21 21 21
189 Il Health Retirement Charges 174 174 174 174
8 Injury Gratuity 0 0 0 0
1,974 TOTAL PENSIONS 1,985 1,985 1,985 0 1,985
49,666 TOTAL EMPLOYEES 50,255 50,412 50,681 25 50,706
PREMISES
7 Building Maintenance Repairs 32 29 29 29
1 Site Maintenance Costs 22 24 25 -1 24
909 Energy 934 948 987 987
43 Rent 46 46 47 1 48
1,576 Rates 1,586 1,586 1,586 1,586
256| Water 300 300 300 300
14 Fixtures 15 15 15 15
37| Contract Cleaning 0 0 0 0
48 Insurance 51 54 54 54
2,901 TOTAL PREMISES 2,986 3,002 3,043 0 3,043
TRANSPORT
293 Direct Transport 310 320 322 10 332
8 Tunnel & Toll Fees 1 1 11 1
137 Operating Lease 133 133 133 7 140
286 Other Transport Costs 470 470 470 470
56 Car Allowances 93 92 90 -4 86
236 Insurance 232 223 223 223
1,016 TOTAL TRANSPORT 1,249 1,249 1,249 13 1,262

Page 64




APPENDIX A2
2021/22 FIRE SERVICE REVENUE BUDGET MOVEMENT (continued)

Actual Base Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Reserve . Qtr 3
2020/21 SERVICE REQUIREMENTS Budget Budget Budget Draw- |Virements| Budget
2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 down 2021/22
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
SUPPLIES & SERVICES
8| Administrative Supplies 13 14 13 7 20
360 Operational Supplies 273 307 310 1 311
7 Hydrants 1 1 11 1
182 Consumables 44 45 45 45
81 Training Supplies 105 106 100 16 116
104 Fire Prevention Supplies 59 62 61 -7 54
3 Catering Supplies 29 31 26 -5 21
632 Uniforms 306 315 514 7 521
72 Printing & Stationery 95 96 94 94
3 Operating Leases 37 1 1 1
236 Professional Fees/Service 239 324 474 -16 -4 454
756 Communications 782 785 785 -1 784
10 Postage 14 14 14 14
9 Command/Control 8 8 11 1
466 Computing 250 260 397 3 56 456
231 Medicals 271 268 268 19 287
6 Travel & Subsistence 68 73 67 67
101 Grants/Subscriptions 102 104 126 6 132
0 Advertising 1 1 1 7 8
29 Insurances 30 34 34 34
42 Furniture 13 13 13 13
68 Laundry 82 82 82 82
3 Hospitality 4 4 9 5 14
105 Seconded Officers In 0 0 0 0
3,514 TOTAL SUPPLIES & SERVICES 2,836 2,958 3,456 13 81 3,550
AGENCY SERVICES
106 Super Fund Admin 126 206 206 206
1,480 ICT Service Provider 1,494 1,492 1,536 6 1,542
412 ICT Managed Suppliers 437 437 437 437
2,876 PFI Unitary Charges 2,866 2,866 2,891 2,891
1,441 Estates Service Provider 1415 1415 1481 1,481
6,315 TOTAL AGENCY SERVICES 6,338 6,416 6,551 0 6 6,557
CENTRAL EXPENSES
488 Finance & Computing 457 454 454 10 464
5 Central Expenses 0 0 0 0
493 TOTAL CENTRAL EXPENSES 457 454 454 0 10 464
CAPITAL FINANCING
3,255 PWLB Debt Charges 4,240 4,240 3,714 0 3,714
53 MRB Debt Charges 60 60 60 60
2,477 Revenue Contribution to Capital 5,481 5,633 5,581 -3,536 19 2,064
5,785 TOTAL CAPITAL FINANCING 9,781 9,933 9,355 -3,536 19 5,838
69,690 TOTAL EXPENDITURE 73,902 74,424 74,789 -3,523 154 71,420
INCOME
12,538 Specific Grants 8,536 10,277 10,770 84 10,854
23 Sales 1 1 1 20 21
976 Fees & Charges 1,170 1,305 1,065 41 1,106
18 Reinforcing Moves 5 5 5 5
1,009 Rents etc 930 930 981 981
376 Recharges Secondments 256 256 130 130
229 Contributions 125 141 200 200
95 Recharges Internal 113 113 113 113
47 Other Income 10 10 10 10
15,311| TOTAL INCOME 11,146 13,038 13,275 0 145 13,420
54,379|NET EXPENDITURE 62,756 61,386 61,514 -3,523 9 58,000

Page 65




APPENDIX A3
2021/22 CORPORATE MANAGEMENT REVENUE BUDGET MOVEMENT

Actual Base Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Reserve ' Qtr 3
2020/21 SERVICE REQUIREMENTS Budget Budget Budget Draw- |Virements| Budget
2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 down 2021/22
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
EXPENDITURE
Finance & Legal costs
79 Finance Officer 79 79 79 79
54 Legal Officer 54 54 58 58
Democratic Rep (1020)
10 - Travel & Subsistence 17 17 17 17
0 - Conference Fees 2 2 2 2
204 - Members Allowances 208 208 204 204
0 - Telephones 1 1 1 1
0 - Training 1 1 1 1
0 - Hospitality 1 1 1 1
Central Expenses (1030)
9 Bank Charges 15 15 15 15
31 District Audit Fees 30 30 30 30
78 Subscriptions 79 79 79 79
465|TOTAL EXPENDITURE 487 487 487 0 487
2021/22 NATIONAL RESILIENCE ASSURANCE REVENUE BUDGET MOVEMENT
Actual Base Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Reserve . Qtr 3
2020/21 SERVICE REQUIREMENTS Budget Budget Budget Draw- |Virements| Budget
2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 down 2021/22
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
EXPENDITURE
1,097 Employee Costs 2,160 2,317 114 2,431
1 Premises Costs 0 0 0
5,969 Transport Costs 6,472 6,472 2 6,474
1,734 Supplies and Services Costs 2,069 3,613 33 3,646
494| Agency Costs 666 666 666
7 Capital Financing Costs 2 3 1 4
9,302| TOTAL EXPENDITURE 0 11,369 13,071 150 13,221
INCOME
9,302 Income 11,369 13,071 150 13,221
0|NET EXPENDITURE 0 0 0 0 0

Page 66




Budgeted Movement on Reserves 2021/22

APPENDIX A4

Gpoing Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Closing
Balance Drawdown | Drawdown | Drawdown Balance
& changes | & changes | & changes
Commmitted Reserves £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Emergency Related Reserves
Bellwin / Emergency Planning Res 222 222
Insurance Reserve 499 499
Facing The Future COVID-19 Res 200 -200 0
Collection Fund Reserve 3,788 -2,403 1,385
0
Modernisation Challenge
Smoothing Reserve 2,000 -412 1,588
Pensions Reserve 55 220 300 575
Recruitment Reserve 2,000 -150 1,850
Invest to Save / Collaboration Res 282 282
Capital Investment Reserve 13,584 -295 -175 3,582 16,696
PFI Annuity Reserve 1,866 -91 1,775
Specific Projects
Community Sponsorship Reserve 74 -19 55
Equipment Reserve 152 -15 137
Community Engagement Reserve 8 8
Training Reserve 150 150
Health and Wellbeing Reserve 25 -20 5
Inflation Reserve 500 -500 526 526
Clothing Reserve 25 -25 0
Ringfenced Reserves
Princes Trust Reserve 82 -106 24 0
Community Risk Management Res 308 -5 303
Energy Reserve 98 75 -20 153
New Dimensions Reserve 164 164
Total Earmarked Reserves 26,082 -3,712 480 3,523 26,373
General Revenue Reserve 3,000 0 0 0 3,000
Total Reserves 29,082 -3,712 480 3,523 29,373

Page 67




This page is intentionally left blank



Capital Programme 2021/22

APPENDIX B

Qtr 3
EXPENDITURE Approved | Qtr1 Qtr 2 Q3 I.Re- Vire- Qtr 3 |Actual to
- Budget | Budget | Budget | Phasings Budget | 31.12.21
ments
£ £ £ £ £ £ £

BUILDING & LAND PROGRAMME
BLDOO1 Roofs & Canopy Replacements 40,000 137,100 177,100 177,100 72,618
BLDO004 Concrete Yard Repairs 20,000 69,400 69,400 -40,000 29,400 5,414
BLDO005 Tower Improvements 10,000 16,600 16,600 -10,000 6,600
BLDO007 L.E.V. Sys In App Rooms 5,000 27,500 27,500 -20,000 7,500
BLDO013 Appliance Room Floors 55,000 112,000 112,000 -75,000 37,000
BLDO14 Boiler Replacements 40,000 62,800 62,800 -50,000 12,800
BLDO016 Community Station Investment 25,000 79,600 79,600 -50,000 29,600
BLDO018 Conference Facilities H/Q 25,000 35,000 35,000 -30,000 5,000
BLD020 5 Year Electrical Test 120,000 173,200 173,200 -50,000 123,200 59,216
BLD026 Corporate Signage 25,000 28,000 28,000 -20,000 8,000 2,446
BLDO031 Diesel Tanks 0 26,600 26,600 26,600 7,200
BLD032 Power Strategy (Generators) 5,000 18,100 18,100 18,100
BLDO033 Sanitary Accommodation Refurb 60,000 96,200 96,200 -75,000 21,200
BLD034 Office Accommodation 35,000 66,800 66,800 -50,000 16,800
BLDO036 LLAR Accommodation Formby 0 0 0 0 -141
BLDO039 F.S. Refurbishment Heswall 0 361,600 361,600 -75,000 286,600 214,540
BLDO041 F.S. Refurbishment Aintree 159,900 159,900 159,900 -159,900 0
BLD044 Asbestos Surveys 35,000 58,000 58,000 -10,000 48,000 26,910
BLDO050 LLAR Accommodation Belle Vale 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 289
BLDO053 Lighting Replacement 25,000 25,000 25,000 -22,900 2,100 2,081
BLDO055 F.S. Refurbishment Bromborough 250,000 287,500 287,500 -250,000 37,500 2,020
BLDO057 F.S. Refurbishment Crosby 125,000 149,400 109,400 -50,000 59,400 15,027
BLDO058 H.V.A.C. Heating, Vent & Air Con 40,000 73,400 73,400 -50,000 23,400
BLDO060 D.D.A. Compliance Work 160,000 203,300 203,300 -150,000 53,300
BLDO061 Lighting Conductors Surge Protectors 35,000 43,000 43,000 -25,000 18,000
BLD062 Emergency Lighting 35,000 40,000 40,000 -25,000 15,000
BLD063 F.S. Refurbishment Kirby 250,000 369,500 369,500 -369,500 0
BLDO067 Gym Equipment Replacement 70,000 96,600 96,600 -50,000 46,600 13,111
BLDO70 Workshop Enhancement 0 11,800 11,800 11,800
BLDO71 Station Refresh 25,000 69,800 69,800 69,800 23,387
BLDO073 SHQ Museum 191,000 191,000 191,000 -191,000 0
BLDO075 LLAR Accomm Newton Le Willows 200,000 272,400 272,400 -200,000 72,400 36,711
BLD081 SHQ Stage C Works 0 0 0 0 -15,014
BLD083 St Helens Fire Station Build 0 0 0 0 -97,670
BLDO084 F.S. Refurbishment Croxteth 0 37,400 37,400 37,400
BLD085 F.S. Refurbishment Speke/Garston 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000 1,108
BLD086 F.S. Refurbishment Old Swan 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000 1,108
BLDO088 F.S. Refurbishment Kensington 40,000 40,000 40,000 -34,900 5,100 5,047
BLD089 F.S. Refurbishment Toxteth/Hub 200,000 200,000 200,000 -200,000 0 11,209
BLD090 F.S. Refurbishment Wallasey 75,000 75,000 75,000 -50,000 25,000 886,083
BLDO091 New Build TDA 5,000,000| 5,031,600( 5,031,600 -3,556,000 1,475,600 1,200
BLD092 Service HQ. Offices 75,000 109,600 109,600 -50,000 59,600
BLD093 Refurbishment MF1 150,000 150,000 150,000 -150,000 0
BLD094 Security Enhancement Works 25,000 35,400 35,400 35,400 32,623
BLD095 Electric Vehicle Infrastructure 25,000 25,000 25,000 -25,000 0
CONO001 Energy Conservation Non-Salix 120,000 152,900 152,900 -100,000 20,000 72,900
CONO002 Energy Conservation Salix 0 1,000 1,000 1,000 17,914
EQUO002 Fridge/Freezer Rep Prog 10,000 32,000 32,000 32,000 5,574
EQUO003 Furniture Replacement Prog 10,000 43,600 43,600 37,000 80,600 26,651
TDAO0O1 TDA Refurbishment 0 150,000 150,000 150,000 83,988

Total 8,145,900 9,794,600 9,794,600 -6,264,200 57,000 3,587,400 1,440,651
FIRE SAFETY
FIR002 Smoke Alarms (H.F.R.A.) 235,000 235,000 235,000 235,000 116,912
FIR005 Installation Costs (H.F.R.A.) 375,000 375,000 375,000 375,000 0
FIR006 Deaf Alarms (H.F.R.A.) 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 0

Total 635,000 635,000 635,000 0 0 635,000 116,912

898,59




Capital Programme 2021/22

APPENDIX B

Qtr 3
EXPENDITURE Approved | Qtr1 Qtr 2 Q3 I.Re- Viremen Qtr 3 |Actual to
- Budget | Budget | Budget | Phasings ts Budget | 01.10.21
£ £ £ £ £ £ £
ICT
FINOO1 F.M.1.S. Replacement 0 0 0 0 0
ITO02 I.C.T. Software 262,000 271,800 271,800 271,800 259,371
ITO03 I.C.T. Hardware 333,460 419,760 431,360 -75,000 19,500 375,860 145,024
ITOO5 I.C.T. Servers 79,000 216,700 216,700 -67,000 -49,000 100,700
ITO18 I.C.T. Network 17,000 126,100 126,100 49,000 175,100 6,069
ITO19 Website Development 0 15,700 15,700 15,700
ITO26 I.C.T. Operational Equipment 88,500 142,100 142,100 -37,000 105,100 75,546
ITO27 I.C.T. Security 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 1,840
ITO28 System Development Portal 110,000 119,700 119,700 -75,000 44,700
ITO30 I.C.T. Projects / Upgrades 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 1,845
ITO55 C3i C&C Comms and Info system 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 1,751
ITO58 New Emergency Services Network 0 54,300 54,300 54,300
ITO59 ESMCP Project Control room 25,900 92,000 92,000 92,000
ITO62 Capita Vision 3 Update 50,000 173,100 173,100 173,100 8,851
ITO64 999 EYE Emergency Streaming 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 0
ITO65 Dynamic Cover Response Tool 35,000 35,000 35,000 35,000 0
Total 1,052,860 1,718,260 1,729,860 -217,000 -17,500( 1,495,360 500,297
OPERATIONAL EQUIP. & HYDRANTS
OPS001 Gas Tight Suits Other Ppe 5,000 7,700 7,700 7,700 0
OPS003 Hydraulic Rescue Equipment 40,000 42,900 42,900 5,500 48,400 48,444
OPS005 Resuscitation Equipment 45,000 59,900 59,900 -50,000 9,900 200
OPS009 Pod Equipment 50,000 102,500 128,500 128,500 25,819
OPS011 Thermal Imaging Cameras 12,000 12,000 12,000 12,000 1,249
OPS016 Gas Detection Equipment 20,000 25,300 25,300 -20,000 5,300
OPS022 Improvements To Fleet 30,000 36,900 54,700 -13,200 17,700 59,200 25,522
OPS023 Water Rescue Equipment 15,000 16,400 16,400 16,400 10,283
OPS024 BA equipment / Comms 30,000 42,100 42,100 -10,000 32,100 3,048
OPS026 Rope Replacement 10,000 23,800 23,800 23,800 16,109
OPS027 Light Portable Pumps 0 30,000 30,000 30,000 3,914
OPS033 Marine Rescue Launch 10,000 20,000 20,000 -10,000 10,000 192
OPS034 Operational Ladders 47,000 74,200 74,200 -50,000 24,200
OPS036 Radiation Detection Equipment 50,000 65,000 65,000 -65,000 0
OPS038 Water Delivery System 0 17,200 17,200 -17,200 0 8,726
OPS039 Water Delivery Hoses 15,000 48,600 48,600 -30,000 18,600
OPS049 Bulk Foam Attack Equipment 120,000 143,000 143,000 -143,000 0
OPS052 DEFRA FRNE Water Rescue Grant 16,000 16,000 16,000 16,000
OPS055 NRAT National Asset Refresh 1,000,000 1,286,200| 3,286,200 3,286,200
OPS056 PV Solar Panels 0 6,000 6,000 -6,000 0 1,961,835
HYDO0O01 Hydrants (New Installations) 18,500 18,500 18,500 18,500
HYDO002 Hydrants (Rep Installations) 18,500 18,500 18,500 18,500 4,913
Total 1,552,000( 2,112,700 4,156,500 -391,200 0| 3,765,300 2,110,253
VEHICLES
VEHO001 WHI'S Purchased 1,136,000 1,965,200| 1,965,200 -1,369,500 595,700 513,541
VEHO002 Ancillary Vehicles 577,720 584,720 478,920 -335,825 143,095 137,386
VEHO004 Special Vehicles 1,441,050 1,571,150 1,571,150 -1,549,550 21,600 21,567
VEHO005 Vehicles water Strategy 0 16,400 16,400 16,400 0
VEHO010 Marine Rescue Vessels 357,500 357,500 357,500 -357,500 0 0
WORO001 Workshop Equipment 0 13,100 13,100 13,100 0
Total 3,512,270| 4,508,070 4,402,270 -3,612,375 0 789,895 672,494
Grand Total 14,898,030 18,768,630| 20,718,230| -10,484,775 39,500( 10,272,955| 4,840,607
Page 70

Page 2 of 3




Capital Programme 2021/22

APPENDIX B

Qtr 3
Approved tr 1 tr 2 3 Re- . tr 3 |Actual to
EXPENDITURE PP Q Q Q3Re- |\ iemen| @
- Budget | Budget | Budget | Phasings ts Budget | 01.10.21
£ £ £ £ £ £ £
Capital Receipts
Sale of Formby LLAR House 0 350,000 350,000 350,000 292,050
Sale of Newton 2 LLAR House 275,000 275,000 275,000 -275,000 0
R.C.C.0O./ Capital Reserve
Capitalisation of Sals HFRA (FIR005) 375,000 375,000 375,000 375,000
Mini Buses (VEHO002) Princes Trust 105,800 105,800 0
TDA Refurbishment Cap Inv Res 5,000,000| 5,000,000( 5,000,000 -3,556,000 1,444,000 886,083
TDA Refurbishment Covid 19 Res 0 150,000 150,000 150,000 83,988
ICT Equipment 0 3,600 15,200 19,500 34,700 34,700
Salix Capital Reserve Released 0 0 0 20,000 20,000 20,000
OPS Gas Monitors & Smoke Blockers 0 0 43,800 43,800 43,800
Grant
NRAT National Resilience Grant 1,000,000 1,286,244 3,286,244 3,286,244 1,961,835
Total Non Borrowing 6,755,800 7,545,644 9,495,244 -3,831,000 39,500| 5,703,744| 3,322,456
Borrowing Requirement
Unsupported Borrowing 8,142,230 11,222,986| 11,222,986 -6,653,775 0| 4,569,211] 1,518,151
Borrowing 8,142,230 11,222,986| 11,222,986 -6,653,775 0| 4,569,211| 1,518,151
Total Funding 14,898,030| 18,768,630| 20,718,230| -10,484,775 39,500| 10,272,955| 4,840,607

Raag {1




This page is intentionally left blank



Capital Programme 2021/22 to 2025/26

APPENDIX C

. . Total Cost 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26
Capital Expenditure
£ £ £ £ £ £
Building/Land 32,111,600 3,587,400 | 26,994,200 330,000 340,000 860,000
Fire Safety 3,175,000 635,000 635,000 635,000 635,000 635,000
ICT 6,630,500 1,495,360 2,444,360 806,460 1,121,460 762,860
Operational Equipment & Hydrants 6,234,500 3,765,300 631,200 474,000 1,133,000 231,000
Vehicles 10,400,120 789,895 5,775,725 700,650 1,315,850 1,818,000
58,551,720 10,272,955 | 36,480,485 2,946,110 4,545,310 4,306,860
2021/22 - 2025/26 Q2 Approved Programme 57,742,220 | 20,718,230 | 25,249,710 2,922,110 4,545,310 4,306,860
Q3 Change to Q2 Budget 809,500 | (10,445,275) 11,230,775 24,000 0 0
Q3 Movements Explained by:
New ICT Equipment 19,500 19,500
CFO/073/21 Approved ESN Scheme 662,000 662,000
CFO/073/21 Approved DCS Upgrade 108,000 108,000
Increase in Salix Schemes 20,000 20,000
Re-Phasing of Schemes 0| (10,484,775)| 10,460,775 24,000 0 0
Q3 Movement 809,500 | (10,445,275)| 11,230,775 24,000 0 0
. i i Total 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26
Financing Available
£ £ £ £ £ £
Capital Receipts 2,825,000 350,000 275,000 2,200,000 0 0
RCCO 6,279,300 453,500 5,075,800 375,000 375,000 0
Capital Reserves 13,805,000 1,614,000 | 12,191,000 0 0 0
Grants 3,286,244 3,286,244 0 0 0 0
Total Non Borrowing 26,195,544 5,703,744 | 17,541,800 2,575,000 375,000 0
Unsupported Borrowing 32,356,176 4,569,211 18,938,685 371,110 4,170,310 4,306,860
Total Funding| 58,551,720 | 10,272,955 | 36,480,485 2,946,110 4,545,310 4,306,860
2021/22 - 2025/26 Q2 Approved Programme 57,742,220 | 20,718,230 | 25,249,710 2,922,110 4,545,310 4,306,860
Q3 Change to Q2 Budget 809,500 | (10,445,275)| 11,230,775 24,000 0 0
Funding Change Explained by:
RCCO 614,500 19,500 595,000 0 0 0
ITO03 19,500
IT0O66 ESN Ready 595,000
Capital Reserves 20,000 20,000 0 0 0 0
Salix Funding Released 20,000
Unsupported Borrowing 175,000 | (10,484,775)| 10,635,775 24,000 0 0
Capital Schemes Rephased 0| (10,484,775)| 10,460,775 24,000
IT0O66 ESN Ready 67,000
ITO67 DCS Upgrade 108,000
Q3 Movements 809,500 11,230,775 24,000 0 0

(10,445,275)

Page 73




Buildings Capital Programme 2021/22 to 2025/26

Type of Capital Expenditure Total Cost 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26
£ £ £ £ £ £
Major Site Refurbishments
BLDO016 Community Station Investment 79,600 29,600 50,000
BLDO039 FS Refurbishment Heswall 361,600 286,600 75,000
BLDO041 FS Refurbishment Aintree 159,900 159,900
BLDO055 FS Refurbishment Bromborough 287,500 37,500 250,000
BLDO057 FS Refurbishment Crosby 109,400 59,400 50,000
BLD063 FS Refurbishment Kirkby 369,500 369,500
BLD070 Workshop Enhancement 11,800 11,800
BLDO071 Station Refresh 69,800 69,800
BLD084 FS Refurbishment Croxteth 37,400 37,400
BLD085 FS Refurbishment Speke/Garston 300,000 150,000 150,000
BLD086 FS Refurbishment Old Swan 300,000 150,000 150,000
BLD088 FS Refurbishment Kensington 140,000 5,100 134,900
BLDO089 FS Refurbishment Toxteth 200,000 200,000
BLDO090 FS Refurbishment Wallasey 575,000 25,000 50,000 500,000
BLD091 TDA New Build 25,031,600 1,475,600 | 23,556,000
BLD093 Marine Fire 1 Refurbishment 150,000 150,000
BLDO095 Electric Vehicle Infrastructure Works 125,000 50,000 25,000 25,000 25,000
28,308,100 2,337,800 | 25,395,300 25,000 25,000 525,000
Other
BLD073 SHQ Museum 191,000 191,000
191,000 191,000
LLAR Accommodation Works
BLD050 LLAR Accommodation Belle Vale 50,000 50,000
BLDO75 LLAR Accommodation Newton-le-Willo 272,400 72,400 200,000
322,400 122,400 200,000
General Station Upgrade Works
BLDO001 Roofs & Canopy Replacements 337,100 177,100 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000
BLDO004 Concrete Yard Repairs 149,400 29,400 60,000 20,000 20,000 20,000
BLD005 Tower Improvements 56,600 6,600 20,000 10,000 10,000 10,000
BLDO013 Non Slip Coating to Appliance Room Flg 232,000 37,000 105,000 30,000 30,000 30,000
BLDO014 Boiler Replacements 122,800 12,800 65,000 15,000 15,000 15,000
BLDO020 Electrical Testing 253,200 123,200 70,000 20,000 20,000 20,000
BLD031 Diesel Tanks 26,600 26,600
BLD033 Sanitary Accommodation Refurbishmen 176,200 21,200 95,000 20,000 20,000 20,000
BLDO044 Asbestos Surveys 98,000 48,000 20,000 10,000 10,000 10,000
BLD060 DDA Compliance 243,300 53,300 160,000 10,000 10,000 10,000
1,695,200 535,200 635,000 175,000 175,000 175,000
Other Works
BLDO007 L.E.V. System in Appliance Rooms 47,500 7,500 25,000 5,000 5,000 5,000
BLD018 Conference Facilities SHQ 55,000 5,000 35,000 5,000 5,000 5,000
BLD026 Corporate Signage 48,000 8,000 25,000 5,000 5,000 5,000
BLDO032 Power Strategy 38,100 18,100 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000
BLD034 Office Accommodation 126,800 16,800 65,000 15,000 15,000 15,000
BLD053 Headquarters Lighting 25,000 2,100 22,900
BLD058 HVAC - Heating, Ventilation & Air Con 93,400 23,400 50,000 20,000
BLDO061 Lightening Conductors & Surge Protecti 63,000 18,000 30,000 5,000 5,000 5,000
BLD062 Emergency Lighting 60,000 15,000 30,000 5,000 5,000 5,000
BLD067 Gym Equipment Replacement 176,600 46,600 70,000 20,000 20,000 20,000
BLD092 Service Headquarters Offices 109,600 59,600 50,000
BLD094 Security Enhancement Works 135,400 35,400 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000
CONO001 Energy Conservation Non-Salix 232,900 52,900 120,000 20,000 20,000 20,000
CONO002 Energy Conservation Salix 21,000 21,000
EQUO002 Replacement programme for Fridge Fre 72,000 32,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000
EQUO003 Furniture Replacement Programme 140,600 80,600 10,000 10,000 20,000 20,000
TDAOO1 TDA Refurbishment 150,000 150,000
1,594,900 592,000 572,900 130,000 140,000 160,000
32,111,600 3,587,400 | 26,994,200 330,000 340,000 860,000

Page 74




Fire Safety Capital Programme 2021/22 to 2025/26

Total Cost

Type of Capital Expenditure 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26
£ £ £ £ £ £
FIR002 Smoke Alarms (100,000 HFRA target) 1,175,000 235,000 235,000 235,000 235,000 235,000
FIR005 Installation costs (HFRA) 1,875,000 375,000 375,000 375,000 375,000 375,000
FIR0O06 Deaf Alarms (HFRA) 125,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000
3,175,000 635,000 635,000 635,000 635,000 635,000

Page 75




ICT Capit

. . Total Cost 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25
Type of Capital Expenditure
£ £ £ £ £
17002 ICT Software
Software Licences 10,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000
New Virtualisation Infrastructure 75,000 75,000
5 Year Antivirus & Filtering Software 200,000 200,000
MDT Software Solution Refresh 100,000 100,000
Microsoft SQL Upgrade 50,000 50,000
Logpoint Security Information and Event Mgmt (SIEM) 80,000 80,000
Microsoft EA Agreement (Servers & Security) 211,600 43,600 42,000 42,000 42,000
Microsoft EA Agreement (Windows & Office) 1,027,700 211,700 204,000 204,000 204,000
Microsoft EA Agreement (Application Development) 70,500 14,500 14,000 14,000 14,000
1,824,800 271,800 562,000 467,000 262,000
1T003 ICT Hardware
Desktops (target 20%) 237,650 69,350 40,100 40,100 40,100
Laptops/Tablets & Docking Stations (target 20%) 432,700 126,200 62,000 62,000 62,000
Monitors & Monitor Arms (target 20%) 80,750 24,750 14,000 14,000 14,000
Peripherals replacement (target 20%) 24,600 12,600 3,000 3,000 3,000
Mobile device replacement (target 20%) 65,400 15,960 12,360 12,360 12,360
Replacement Backup Tape Drive 25,000 25,000
IP TV Asset Refresh 25,000 25,000
Landline Handset Refresh 10,000 10,000
Audio Visual Conference Facility - SHQ 85,000 10,000 75,000
New TDA site 294,800 67,000 227,800
New Long Lane Station 22,400 22,400
1,303,300 375,860 456,660 141,460 131,460
1T005 ICT Servers
Server/storage replacement (target 20%) 389,300 62,300 132,000 65,000 65,000
Server/storage growth 94,400 38,400 14,000 14,000 14,000
SAN 5 Year Refresh 135,000 135,000
618,700 100,700 146,000 79,000 214,000
1T018 ICT Network
Local Area Network replacement (discrete) 158,100 158,100
Network Switches/Router replacement 10,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000
Network Switches/Routers Growth 25,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000
Network Data Port Replacement 50,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000
Core Network Switch/Router upgrade 200,000 200,000
MDT Wireless Network Replacement 25,000 25,000
Public Wi-Fi Replacement 15,000 15,000
Vesty Road Network Link Refresh 40,000 40,000
Secondary FireControl backup telephony refresh 40,000 40,000
563,100 175,100 17,000 17,000 337,000
1T026 ICT Operational Equipment
Pagers/Alerters 50,500 34,500 4,000 4,000 4,000
Callmy Alert 11,000 7,000 1,000 1,000 1,000
Station Equipment Replacement 50,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000
Toughpad Asset Refresh - Vehicles 150,000 150,000
MDT Replacement (Not incl. in ESMCP) 128,600 53,600 75,000
NEW Station End Network Equipment Asset Refresh 140,000
Increase in Appliances - Equipment 17,200 17,200
547,300 105,100 32,200 90,000 165,000
1T058 New Emergency Services Network (ESN)
ESN Radios / Infrastructure - Estimate 54,300 54,300
54,300 54,300
1T063 Planning Intelligence and Performance Sys}
PIPS System upgrade 120,000 120,000
120,000 120,000
Other IT Schemes
ITO19 Website Development 55,700 15,700
ITO27 ICT Security-Remote Access Security FOBS 10,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000
IT028 System Development (Portal) 119,700 44,700 75,000
ITO30 ICT Projects/Upgrades 25,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000
ITO55 C.3.l. C.&.C Communication & Information 25,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000
ITO59 ESMCP Project Control Room Integration 92,000 92,000
IT062 Capita Vision 3 Update (CFO/058/17) 173,100 173,100
ITO64 999 Emergency Streaming (999EYE) 40,000 40,000
ITO65 Dynamic Cover/Response Tool 35,000 35,000
ITO66 ESN Ready 662,000 662,000
ITO67 DCS Upgrade 108,000 108,000
FINOO1 FMIS/Eproc/Payroll/HR Replacement 253,500 253,500
1,599,000 412,500 1,110,500 12,000 12,000
6,630,500 I A,#92-36! 2,444,360 806,460 1,121,460

uﬂ\a T




Operational Equipment Capital Programme 2021/22 to 2025/26

. . Total Cost 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26
Type of Capital Expenditure
£ £ £ £ £ £
OPS001 Gas Tight Suits Other PPE
Gas Tight Suits 31,700 7,700 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000
Bump Hats 2,000 2,000
33,700 7,700 6,000 6,000 8,000 6,000
OPS003 Hydraulic Rescue Equipment
Hydraulic Rescue Equipment - Replacement Prog 568,400 48,400 85,000 85,000 350,000
Air Lifting Equipment - Air Bags & Control Units 80,000 80,000
648,400 48,400 85,000 85,000 350,000 80,000
OPS005 Resuscitation Equipment
Resuscitation Rescue Equipment 14,900 2,500 12,400
Appliance Resuscitation Equipment & Cylinders 45,000 7,400 37,600
59,900 9,900 50,000
OPS009 POD Equipment
Demountable Unit Refurbishment 102,500 102,500
Gas Monitors 26,000 26,000
128,500 128,500
OPS022 Improvements to Fleet
Improvements to Fleet 151,400 25,700 35,700 30,000 30,000 30,000
PPV Fans 23,200 18,900 4,300
Smoke Blockers 17,800 14,600 3,200
192,400 59,200 43,200 30,000 30,000 30,000
OPS024 BA Equipment/Communications
BA Cylinder Replacement 15,700 12,000 3,700
Rolling 10 year life 630,000 630,000
BA Test Rig 11,200 8,500 2,700
BA Set Batteries 15,200 11,600 3,600
672,100 32,100 10,000 630,000
OPS036 Radiation/Gas Detection Equipment
Radiation Detection Equipment 45,000 45,000
Single Gas Detection Equipment 20,000 20,000
65,000 65,000
OPS049 Bulk Foam Equipment
Bulk Foam Attack Equipment 48,900 48,900
Bulk Foam Stock 94,100 94,100
143,000 143,000
Other Operational Equipment
OPS011 Thermal imaging cameras 187,000 12,000 175,000
OPS016 Gas Detection Equipment (MYRA DS) 45,300 5,300 28,000 12,000
OPS023 Water Rescue Equipment 76,400 16,400 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000
OPS026 Rope Replacement 63,800 23,800 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000
OPS027 Light Portable Pumps 30,000 30,000
OPS033 Marine Rescue Equipment 60,000 10,000 20,000 10,000 10,000 10,000
OPS034 Operational Ladders 135,200 24,200 64,000 17,000 15,000 15,000
OPS039 Water Delivery Hoses 118,600 18,600 47,000 17,000 18,000 18,000
OPS052 DEFRA FRNE 16,000 16,000
OPS054 Electrical Equipment 88,000 8,000 60,000 10,000 10,000
OPS055 NRAT Asset Refresh 3,286,200 | 3,286,200
4,106,500 | 3,442,500 192,000 316,000 78,000 78,000
Hydrants
HYDO001 Hydrants (New Installations) 92,500 18,500 18,500 18,500 18,500 18,500
HYDO002 Hydrants (Replacements) 92,500 18,500 18,500 18,500 18,500 18,500
185,000 37,000 37,000 37,000 37,000 37,000
6,234,500 | 3,765,300 631,200 474,000 1,133,000 231,000

Page 77




Vehicles Capital Programme 2021/22 to 2025/26

. Total 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26
Type of Capital Expenditure Unit .g o g .g .g .g g
=] =) £ =) £ =) £ =) £ =] £
VEH002 Ancillary Vehicles
Cars
Pool Cars - Skoda Fabia 12,680 | 15 190,200 15 190,200
Pool Cars - Possible Electric 18,000 | 20 360,000 20 360,000
Officer Response Cars - 2020/21 Pricf 22,650 | 13 294,450 6 135,900 | 7 | 158,550
Officer Response Cars - 2025/26 Pricf 30,000 | 7 210,000 7 210,000
4X4s
Isuzi 24,000 | 4 96,000 3 72,000 1 24,000
Vans
Master/Transit Panel (CAP1903 - 6) 23,850 | 11 262,350 6| 143,100 | 4 95,400 1 23,850
Panel Van 22,000 | 1 22,000 1 22,000
Panel Van - RTC reduction 31,000 | 1 31,000 1 31,000
Dog Van Mercedes Vito 49,775 | 1 49,775 1 49,775
Water Rescue Van 35,000 | 1 35,000 1 35,000
Mini Buses
Fire Service - Blue Light 32,000 | 1 32,000 1 32,000
Princes Trust - Disabled Access 32,000 | 1 32,000 1 32,000
Princes Trust 24600 | 3 73,800 3 73,800
1,688,575 143,100 649,075 158,550 407,850 330,000
VEH004 Special Vehicles
CPL - Aerial Appliance 780,000 | 2 1,634,100 21 1,634,100
Prime Movers/POD Long Term Capabl 168,050 | 3 504,150 1 168,050 [ 2 [ 336,100
ICU 650,000 | 1 650,000 1 650,000
BA Support Unit (POD) - NEW 250,000 | 1 250,000 1 250,000
Crew Van for Drone 32,000 | 1 32,000 1 32,000
Wildfire Appliance 4x4 50,000 | 2 100,000 2| 100,000
TDA Road Sweeper 96,500 | 1 96,500 1 96,500
Curtain Sided Truck (Driving School) 86,000 | 1 86,000 1 86,000
Water Rescue Unit 54,000 | 1 54,000 1 54,000
Crane Lorry 200,000 | 1 200,000 1 200,000
Welfare Van for Operational Incidents | 21,600 | 1 21,595 1 21,595
Water Bowser Appliance 275,000 | 1 275,000 1 275,000
3,903,345 21,595 3,359,650 522,100
VEH010 Marine Rescue Vessels (45,600)
RNLI Class 75 Rib Boats 357,500 357,500
357,500 357,500
VEH001 Fire Appliances
2020/21 Slippage 3 595,700 3 | 595,700
Heavy Rescue Vehicle 233,500 | 1 233,500 1 233,500
2021/22 Price CAP1971 284,000 | 4 1,136,000 41 1,136,000
2024/25 Price 290,000 | 3 870,000 3 870,000
2025/26 Price 296,000 | 3 888,000 3| 888,000
NEW Electric Fire Appliances 600,000 | 1 600,000 1 600,000
4,323,200 595,700 1,369,500 870,000 1,488,000
VEH005 Water Strategy Vehicles 16,400 16,400
WORO001 Workshop Equipment
Equipment 43,100 13,100 20,000 10,000
Rolling Road Replacement (MOT bay) 10,000 10,000
Smoke Analyser (MOT bay) 8,000 8,000
Smoke Analyser (HGV) 10,000 10,000
Workshop Equip Somers vehicle Lift. 20,000 | 2 40,000 2 40,000
111,100 13,100 40,000 20,000 38,000
10,400,120 789,895 5,775,725 700,650 1,315,850 1,818,000

Page 78



	Agenda
	2 Minutes from Previous Meeting
	3 Grant Thornton Auditors Annual Report 2021
	4 MRFA Audit Committee Progress report - January 2022
	5 Financial Review 2021/22 - October to December
	Appendix A: Revenue
	Appendix B: capital 2122
	Appendix C: FINANCIAL REVIEW 2021/22 - October TO DECEMBER


